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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

41 December 31 December

20119 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Revenue from conlracls with cuslomers 13,473,580 11,161,360
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 896,275 {147,358)
Income lax (expense)/credit (434.496) 52,070
Profit/(Loss) for the year 461,779 (95,290)
Total comprehensive loss 461,779 (95.290)
Total equily 3,915,087 3:534,9106
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NOTICE OF

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 55" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Fan Milk Ple will be held at Executive
Lounge, Radisson Hotel Ikeja, 42/44 |saac John Street, Ikeja GRA, Lagos on 27" August, 2020 at 12.00 noon or 50 soon
thereafter, to transact the following businesses:

(4)  ORDINARY BUSINESS

L To lay before the members, the Reports of the Directors, the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 together with the Reports of the Audit Committee and Independent Auditors thereon.

2. To elect/re-elect retiring Directors.

3. To autharize Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.

4, Toelect Members of the Audit Committee.

{B) SPECIAL BUSINESS

1 To fix the remuneration of the Directors.

2. Change of Object Clause of the Memorandum of Association of the Company
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass without maodification, the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 45 and 46 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, CAP C20,
Laws of the Federation of Migeria, 2004 (including any modifications thereof), the main objects clause of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company in Clause 3(b} — (d) thereof be and is hereby altered and amended as
follows:

I.  Thatthe existing Clause 3({b) be substituted with the following:

b. To import, yoghurt, water, infant milk formula, cereals, dairy and dairy derivatives, and other plant-based
products; and all substances required for the manufacture or production of drink, breast milk
substitutes and meal products forinfants, growing children and young adults;

Il. Thatthe existing Clause 3(c) be edited and retained as follows:

c. To import powdered milk, vegetable oils, fat of animal origin and all chemical preservatives, flavors and
essences and other substances requisite for the manufacture or production of the aforesaid wares and
for the manufacture and importation of bottles, jars, cans, cartons or other containers, or materials for
the production of such containers for the purpose of such packing as aforesaid;

lll. Thatthe existing Clause 3(b) and (d) be merged as a new Clause 3{d) as follows:

d. To operate haulage for the purpose of production and distribution of the fore mentioned products and
materials requisite for their manufacture, and to undertake the business of contract packing using the
aforesaid goods or materials;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed proper, necessary, or
expedient, including making necessary applications at the Corporate Affairs Commission, for the purpose of giving
effect to this Resolution and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto and to settle all questions that may
arise in this regard or following directions that may be given by the Corporate Affairs Commission at any stage, without
requiring the Board to secure any further consent or approval of the shareholders of the Company.”

By Order of the Board

OLAKUNLE OLUSANYA

COMPANY SECRETARY & LEGAL ADVISER

FRC/2015/NBA/OD000001539

Registered Office - Plot 1C Eleyele Industrial Layout, Ibadan, Oyo State

Dated 28thJuly 2020 »



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTES: PROXY

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic and the attendant directives issued by televant authorities on physical distancing and a limit
on the maximum number of persons at a gathering, Sharcholders' attendance at this Annual General Meeting shall be by
Proxy only in accordance with the Corporate Affairs Commission's “Guidelines on Holding of Annual General Meetings of
Public Companies Using Proxies™.,

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting can appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her stead. The proxy
needs not be a sharcholder. Consequently, Members are required to appoint a proxy of their choice from the following
proxies to represent them at the Meeting:

{a} Mr. Olayinka Akinkughe;

()] Mr, Ferdinand Mouko;

@ Dr. Babatunde Ajibade (SAN);
id) Mr. Adekunle Odesanya;

(€) Ms. Toyosi Kolawole;

{f) Mt. Peter Eyanaku; and

[f4] Mr. Sam Mpamugo)

A member of the Company entitled to artend and vote, is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him /her.

For the appointment to be valid for the purposes of the Meeting, the duly completed proxy forms must be deposited at the
office of the Registrars, Greenrwich Registrars and Data Solutions Limited. 247 Murtala Muhammed Way, Alagomeii, Yaba

Lagos, or sent by e-mail to proxy(@gtlregisrars.com, not later than 48 hours to the meeting. A blank Proxy Form is
included in the 2019 Annual Report & Accounts, which will also be available on the Company's website: www.fanmilk-

nig.net and that of the Registrars, wwwigtlregistrars.com. The Company has made arrangements at its cost for stamp duty

to be paid on the proxy forms.
CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members and Transfer Book will be closed from 13" to 20” of August 2020, both days inclusive for the
purpose of updating the Register of Members,

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In accordance with Section 359(3) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act [Cap C20, Laws of the Federation of Nigeria,
2(14}, a nomination (in wrinng) by any member of a shareholder for appointment to the Audit Commitree should reach the
Company Secretary at least 21 days before the date of the Annual General Meeting.

The Securities and Exchange Commission's Code of Corporate Governance for public Companies stipulates that members
of the Audit Committee should have basic financial literacy and should be able to read Financial Statements. We therefore
request that nominations be accompanied by a copy of the nominee's curriculum vitae,

ELECTRONICVERSION OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

The electronic versions of the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts is accessible on the Company's website and also
circulated by email to all shareholders' who have provided their email addresses in the shareholders' register.
Shareholders who are interested in receiving an electronic copy of the 2019 Annual Report by email should send request

w info@gtlregistrars.com

LIVE STREAMING OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting will be streamed live and a link will be provided on the Company's website subsequently
for this purpose,
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1%

from N11.16 billion
to N13.47 billion

GROWTH IN
PROFTABILITY

989%

N461.8m

Profit for the year
improved by 585% from
a loss positon of
(N95.29) million in 2018
to a profit of N461,78
million in 2019.

The board and management came up
with inmovatdve l:r-:.zrpjes- e pesist

cil 'r.:r' extemahines, thepehy
im.p:r wing the basiness P
deliv mproved perf

N1.11 billlon in 2009 thiough ooar

productvity and cost sevings

My dear distinguished Shareholders, My
colleagues on the Board, distinguished
ladies and gentlemen, it gives me great
pleasure and on behalf of the Board of
Directors, “the Board” welcome you all to
the 55" Annual General Meeting (AGM)
of our great Company, Fan Milk Plc, It is
also my privilege to present to our
shareholders the 2019 Annual Report
including my address.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 1
would like to thank the Shareholders for
your continued support to the Board and
Management of the Company during the
financial year. 1 will commence my address
with a review of the operating
environment during the year under review
focusing on an overview of the global and
local business environment, and how it
impacted our performance and conclude
by briefly looking ahead to the expectations
for the year 2020,

GLOBAL ECONOMIC
ENVIRONMENT

A retrospective view of 2019 reveals that
the year kicked off with misgivings about
global economic growth, largely due to the
some of the setbacks major economies
faced towards the end of 2018. The
unimpressive forecast for the year became
more apparent upon the resumption of
retaliatory tariff implementation between
the United States and China. The trade war
between the two largest economies of the
world raised the level of uncertainty about
future investment decisions and the
direcdon of the global economy.

With the soft growth momentum,
companies scaled down on production and
most Central Banks including the Federal
Reserve reacted with accommodative
policies such as interest rates cuts and
quantitative easing to enhance economic
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activities. The emerging markets were
however not left out of the equation, as
country-specific macroeconomic
weaknesses, geopolitical tensions, social
unrest and political disquiet continued to
highlight the structural headwinds that
further contributed to the global economic
stagnation.

Premised on the foregoing, the emerging
economies began to experience reduction
in foreign investors' inflows and an
expansion in their external borrowing
costs as higher premium is demanded to
incentivize investors to remain in their
markets. Heavy external debts and low
productivity continued to put pressure on
the emerging markets' currencies.

The oil narrative is another significant
mention of 2019, The balance of power
play between OPEC+ (OPEC & Russia)
and the United States shale producers saw
oil price hit a high of $75 per barrel by half-
year but the slow growth conundrum
precipitated by the intense trade war and
other mentioned factors, depressed the
price level to circa $60pb by end of year —
this is in spite of the malicious attack on
Saudi oil facilities in September.

Owerall, the global environment remained
quite volatile with a number of unresolved
issues starting from the unyielding trade
talks berween US and China, tension in the
Middle East region, the unsettled Brexit
negotiation and its attendant effects,
impeachment heatings in the US, imminent
recession in large emerging markets etc. All
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these events and other unforeseen occurrences will
continue to keep investors, financial entities,
Governments and Regulators awake even in the
coming year 2020

NIGERIAN ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

The year under review witnessed some slight positive
improvements in Nigeria's macro-economic indices
with the Gross Domestic product (GDP) recording
a full year growth of 2.27% an improvement on the
1.19% growth recorded in 2018 while the non-cil
sector was the driver of growth in the recent past it
was the turn of oil sector in 2019 with a 4.59 %
growth compared to 0,59% in 2018. Headline
inflation rate declined from 12.08% in late 2018 and
moderated at between 11.0% -11.4% in the first half
of 2019.

On the manufacturing sector, there was a slight
growth of 0.77% compared to 2.09% in 2018 and the
Food and Beverage and Tobacco sector grew at
2.17% compared to 2.93% in 2018, The rate of the
growth in the economy however continues to trend
below the population growth rate of about 2,6%
thus creating challenges of per capita income and
unemployment. The GDP growth has not translated
to higher consumer purchasing power. Evidently,
impediments to growth in the economy continued to
be linked to poor investment confidence, tougher
operating environment and weaker consumer
wallets, which constrained investment and corporate
output growth in the absence of fiscal stimulus.

However, despite the limited positive developments
mentioned above with an expansionary fiscal
disposition, the Central Bank adopted a loose stance
on Monetary Policy. Thus, the first MPC meeting for
2019 saw a reduction in the MPR from 14% to 13.5%
to align with the decline in infladon with the decrease
in the lending rates by commercial banks with the
average lending rate of 15%. The Central Bank of
Nigeria (CBN) played a large role in the overall
economy, not just in exchange rate and price stability
policy, but also in direct lending and trade policy as
they mandated commercial banks to target a
minimum loan-to-deposit ratio of 65% by
December 2019 or maintain higher cash reserves.
This was targeted at “encouraging” banks to lend to
real sector and boost growth.

In 2019 the high cost of funds continued to hamper

business operations, low purchasing power, growing
unemployment, increased poverty rate, poor state of
social infrastructures including road and power supply,
multiple taxation increased level of insecurity challenges,
Lagos port congestion remained the bane of business
during the year with major companies struggling with
dwindling profits and the risk of business continuity.

FAN MILK'S PERFORMANCE

The year 2019 presented some slight improvement in the
Company's performance; which, although progressive,
did not majorly impact the business considering the
deficient performance in previous years. Nevertheless, we
acknowledge the little steps the business took towards
recovetry. Revenue grew at 21%, from N11.16 billion to
N13.47 billion over the preceding year, however, the harsh
and turbulent economic situation in the country still
remained. The board and management came up with
innovative strategies to resist threats posed by
externalities, thereby improving the business process and
delivering improved performance. Profit for the year
improved by 585% from a loss position of (N95.29)
million in 2018 to a profitof N461.78 million in 2019,
Operating results improved by 280% from N292.62
million in 2018 to N1.11 billion in 2019 through our
productivity and cost savings initiatives. These activities
helped to mitigate the impact of inflation, interest rate risk
and foreign exchange risk on our business. We were also
able to deliver value to our consumers by offering
nutritious products at affordable prices bearing in mind
the effect deteriorating standard of living and declining
disposable income on demand for our products.

During 2019, we also rewarded our long-time outstanding
distributors for their continued patronage. It is no news
that electric power supply which is the prime resource for
our business still presents great challenges in Nigeria.
Nevertheless, we delivered improved operating results not
only through our efficient and effective cost management
and revenue growth but also by partnering and supporting
our distributors in many innovative and strategic ways.

The business reported a positive Earnings per share (EPS)
of 40 Kobo which is a growth of 600% over 2018 (EP5:
(8) Kobo).

The period under review also witnessed the introduction
of a premium ice cream, Go Slo, and Fan Prime sachet
yoghurt. The two innovations are the first of their kind
with promising future for the Company. The following
initiatives were also embarked on during the year under
review:
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* As part of our strategy to grow our brand equity, we
introduced Fanlce Mint and Vanilla, FanVanille and
SuperYogo limited edition to mark 2019
independence day celebration

+ Improved Hotspot and vendor management strategy
was deployed to grow the outdoor business all-round
the year

+ Fanlce renovation and innovation to fill white spaces
and accelerate Indoor business growth.

+ To improve distribution, we increased the total sales
assets by deploying more in 2019,

+ Increase in freezing capacity for the frozen products
across various brands

* The Company acquired additional cold chain trailers
to enhance adequate distribution of products across
the country

DIVIDENDS

In view of the present volatile circumstances and the
current loss situation of the Company, the Board has
decided that it would be imprudent to recommend
dividend payment for the year under review. The
Company is however strongly committed to driving
returns on investments to shareholders in the years

ahead.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company in the period under review continued its
drive to engender best business and corporate practices
in all spheres of operations. The Company's sustained
market reputation for integrity and corporate
responsibility remains well entrenched. During the year
there was a major change in the shareholding structure
for the major shareholder of the Company which is Fan
Milk Internatdonal A/S (FMI). I will start by giving a bit
of background. Over the last eight (8) years, FMI
underwent a transiion with a change in ownership
structure. In November 2013 Abraaj Group bought-over
100% shares of FMI, and this led to the change in
ownership from the Emborg family who were the
original owners. In April 2014 Danone entered into a
partnership arrangement with Abraaj to acquire 49%
stake while Abraaj held 51% stake in Fan Milk
International, with the understanding that Danone could
gradually acquire a controlling stake in Fan Milk
International. Danone is a French multinational food-
products corporation based in Paris and having three
core business areas: Essential Dairy and Plant-Based
Products (EDP), Water, Specialized Nutrition: Early Life
Nutrition (ELN) and Medical Nutrition with presence in
over 120 countries and on the 31" of July 2019 Danone
fully acquired the 100 % controlling shares of FMI.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Consequent upon the take over of 100% shareholding

of FMI the following Directors who were nominees of
Abraaj resigned from the board name Mr Kodjo Aziagbe
(former Chairman) Mr Carlman Moyo and Mr Zahi El-
Khatib with effect from the 31" of July 2019. Upon the
resignation of Mr Kodjo Aziagbe 1 was appointed the
Chairman of the Board. Also during the year, Mr Herve
Barrere the former Managing Director and Mr Fredric
Leblan also resigned from the Board. On behalf of the
Shareholders, Board, Management and all the employees,
the Company is grateful for the service and wish them all
the bestin their future endeavours.

Mr Ferdinand Mouko was appointed during the year as
the new Managing Director. He bears an excellent track
record on business transformation which we are
confident will be benchicial for the growth of our
business. Please join me in welcoming Mr Mouko and
wishing him all the best as he takes the business to greater
heights.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As we looked forward to 2020, we were hopeful that
Nigeria would grow by 2.3% in the coming year, as
projected by the IMF, and that this growth would
positively impact us as a business. However, this was
before the global pandemonium of the coronavirus and
sudden decline of crude oil which is trading at its lowest
level since the global crisis of 2008. Nigeria's N10.59Tm
Budget was based on crude Oil price at $57pbl. Revenue
generation was at N8.16Trn with a deficit of N2.175Ten
of which the deficit is to be financed by both domestic
and external borrowings. The consequence of this is that
the Maira's relative stability at the FX market will come
under strong serutiny as the external reserves may weaken
due to capital flight to safe asset.

While we are aware of the difficuldes ahead, our focus
remains on identifying and taking advantage of the
opportunities in the financial market in order to emerge as
a stronger entity in 2020, I am therefore optimistic about
the Company's growth prospects. Already, plans are on-
going as follows:

* Aspartof the innovation portfolio and in response to
consumers feedback, the recendy launched premium
ice cream, Go Slo will add new variants to excite our
CONSUMers

« Expansion of the ice cream category flavours outside
the legendary vanilla flavour to include banana,
chocolate, iramisu and coconut flavours,

+ We also launched Fan prime, a nutritious yoghurt
based product, we plan to re-launch pan-Nigeria in the
coming year

* Planned investment in additional production lines to
improve the production capacity in order to meet up
with demand

* Investmentin sales assets to accelerate growth.
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* Continnation of the implementation of cost-cutting

strategies throughout the organization which includes:

a) Reduction in energy consumption at the
manufacturing and logistics sites

b} Improvementin costof maintenance and spare part
ms.nagr:mcnr

¢) Cash management through stock planning
optimization

d) Implementation of initiatives to curtail structural
costin the business

The financial performance of our Company in the year
under review was impacted by the factors earlier mentioned
in my address. However, 1 am confident that the strategies
being adopted by the Board and Management will put our
Company on a sound footing to enjoy growth, Wi have made
deliberate choices in where we are putting our investments as
a business —in our brands and in our people. We are confident
that these investments will yield dividends and improve
sharcholder return in the years to come.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I wish to express my
sincere gratitude to our numerous customers across the
country; our foreign partners, sharcholders, management
and to every staff of Fan Milk Plc for your continued
support. Confident in our business approach and solid
strategy to drive sustainable growth while delivering strong
results,

I will also like to thank my fellow Board Members, the
Management team and every employee for their individual
and collective contribution for the year gone by and look
forward to a prosperous 2020

Thank you for your kind attention and do have a pleasant
Annual General Meeting,

, j\clﬂ%ﬁdgp

MR. OLAYINKA. 0. AKINKUGBE
CHAIRMAN
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Direclors submit their reporl together with the audited financial statements for Lhe year ended 531 December zoig, which
disclose the state of affairs of the company.

Incorporation and address

Fan Milk Mlc was incorporated as a Limited Liability Company on 4 November 1961 and was converted on 5 October 1905 to a Public
Limited Company. The Company has a factory located in Elevele Industrial Layout, Ihadan and is engaged in the production and
distribution of dairy, juice and food products. Fan Milk Ple is a subsidiary of Danish Dairy Services (A/8), Denmark (Fan Milk
International} oo.37% of the share capital of the Company is owned by Danish Dairy Services A/S Denmark and 0.63% is owned by
Nigerian individuals and corporate iny estors.

Principal activities and business review

The principal activ ities of the Company continue Lo be production and distribution of dairy, juice and food products.

Results for the year
For the vear ended 31 December 2zo1g
The following isthe summary of the operating results:
g1 December g1 December

20009 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Fevenue from contracts with customers 13,473,580 11,161,360
Profit/{ Less) before taxation 806,275 {147,358)
Income tax (434,490) Az,008
Profit/{ Loss) for the year 401,779 (95,290)
Total com prehensiv e income/(loss) for the vear 461,770 (o5,200)
Total equity 43,915,087 J.504,010

Directors

The directors as of the date of this report and those who held office during the year are as follows:

Mr. Olay inka. O Akinkughe -Chairman

Mr. Ferdinand Mouko (Cameroonian) - Appointed on 12 September 201- Managing Director

Mr. Kay ode Adebiyi - Appointed on 12 Seplember 2019 - Executive Director

Mr. Olivier Klein ( French) - Appointed on 2 December zo19 - Non-Executive Director
Mr. Yeo Zicheicton (Ivorian) - Appointed on 7 February 2019 = Non=Execulive Director
Dr. Babatunde Ajibade (SAN) - Non-Executive Director
Mr. Leblan Frederic (French) - Resigned on 2 December zo10 - Non-Execulive Director
Mr. Carlman Moyo({South African) - Resigned on 12 September 2019 - Non-Executive Director
Mr. Kodjo Aziaghe (Togolese) - Resigned on 12 September 2019 - Non-Execulive Director
Mr. Hery e Barrere (French) - Resigned on 2 Seplember 2019 - Execulive Direetor

Mr. Zahi El Khatib (British) - Resigned on 12 September 2019 - Non-Execulive Director

-

PR R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Since the last AGM the following Directors who were nominees of Abraaj resigned from the board namely Mr. Kodjo Aziaghe (former
Chairman)} Mr Carlman Maoyo and Mr Zahi El- Khatib with effect from the 12 th of September 2019, During the year also Mr. Herve Barrere
the former Managing Director and Mr Fredric Leblan also resigned from the Board.

During the vear, Mr. Ferdinand Mouko was appointed onto the Board as the new Managing Director, Mr. Olivier Klien was also appointed
to the Board as a Non-Executive Director effective 2 nd December 2019, Mr. Yeo Ziobeieton as a Non- Executive Director and Mr. Kayode
Adebiyi as an Executive Director effective 12 th September 2019 respectively. The Director have now presented themselves to Shareholders
for the approval of their appointment, in line with Section 249(1) and (2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA).

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act (CAMA), the
Directors to retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM, are Dr, Babatunde Ajibade (SAN) and Mr. Olayinka Akinkoghe and who, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the meeting,

Directors' interests

The directors” interests in the capital of the Com pany are as follows:

Blo seum woi 7810 BLs scwm dnr 2800

Nowsrsn v anains Nowartan s suaiss
Name Direet Indirect Direet| Indirect
Mr. Olayinka. O. Akinkughe - - -
Mr. Ferdinand Mouko (Cameroonian) - - -
Mr. Kayode Adebiyi - - -
Mr. Olivier Klein (French) - - -
Mr. Yeo Ziobeieton (Ivorian) - - -
Dr., Babatunde Ajibade (SAN) - - -
Mr. Leblan Frederie (French) - - B N/A
Mr. Carlman Movo (South African) - - -
Mr. Kodjo Aziaghe (Togolese) - - -
Mr. Herve Barrere (French) - - -
Mr. Zahi El Khatib(British) = & - N/A
*N/A - Notapplicable,
Allied Matters Act.
Directors'interest in contracts
Majorsharcholders
As at the date of this report no person or Company has more than 5% of the capital except:

Shares of sokeach %

Danish Dairy Services A/S (Fan MilkInt'l) 1,155,050,318 0037
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Employment of disabled persons

It is the Company's policy to consider disabled persons for employment, bearing in mind the aptitude and abilities of the applicants.
This policy will continue.

Health, safery and welfare of employees

The Company provides free medical services for the staff at the Company's clinic at the factory premises in Ibadan and in Lagos under

the supervision of experenced staff nurses and part-time doctors. The Company also maintains canteens where the staff have free
meals. Safety and oecupational health regulations are strictly adhered to.

Environmental commitment

It is the Company's policy to protect the environment and the Company strives to adopt appropriate measures of international
standards and operate in accordance with Nigerian law in order to minimize the environmental impact of its activities.

Corporate social responsibility

Itis the Company's policy to conduct business in a socially responsible manner and embrace the principles and tenets of 150

26000, thereby contributing as a corporate organization to socially beneficial projects across the country,

Auditors
The Auditors, Messrs PricewarerhouseCoopers, Chartered Accountants, have signified their willingness to be re-appointed under
Section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Marters Act, 2004

By order of the board

Logre
Olakunle Olusanya
FRC/2015/NBA /00000001539

Company Secretary & Legal Adviser
28th July 2020,
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

To the shareholders of Fan Milk Ple

In accordance with the provisions of Section 359 (6) of the Companies and Allied Malters Act CAP Cz2o, laws of the
Federation of Nigeria, 2004, we have reviewed the audited financial slatements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 and report as follows:

a) The accounting and reporting policies of Lthe Com pany are consistenl with legal requirements and agreed ethical
b) The scope and planning of the external audit was adequate.

¢) The Com pany maintained effective systems of accounting and internal controls during the vear.

d) Having reviewed the external auditors’ indings and recommendations on managemenl maltters, we are salishied
with management responses thereon.

Dated this 2 8th day of July, 2o0z20.

N

Mr. Adekunle Odesanyva
Chairman, Audit Committee
FRC/2014,/NIM/oooo00007270

Members of the audit committee
1 Mr. Adekunle Odesanya
2 Ms. Toyosi Kolawaole
3 M. Peter Evanaku
4 Mr. Olayinka O. Akinkughe
5 Dr. Babatunde A.M. Ajibade, SAN

6 Mr. Carlman Movo
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Fan Milk Ple

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opinion, Fan Milk Ple's (“the company’s™) financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the company as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performanee and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Financial Reparting Counedl of Nigeria Act.

What we have audited

Fan Milk Ple’s finanrial statements eomprise:

» the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019;
| +  the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2o1g;

=  the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

s the statement of cash flows for the vear then ended; and

s  the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We condueted our avdit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (18As). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statemnents section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriale Lo provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethies for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards), i.e. the IESBA Code issued by the International
Fthies Standards Board for Accountants. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in aceordance with
the IESBA Code.

Key awdit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significanee in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the eontext of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters,

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communieate in our report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Directors,
professional advisers and registered office, Financial highlights, Report of the directors, Report of the audit
committee, Statement of directors’ responsibilities, Statement of value added and Five-year financial summary

PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accountants, Landmark Towers, 58 Water Corporation Road, Vietaria fsland,
Lagos, Nigeria
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but does not inelude the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to the

date of this auditor's report, and the other sections of Fan Milk Ple 2019 Annual Report, which are expected to
be made available to us after that date.

Our gpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express an audit opinion or any form of assuranee conclusion thereon.

In connection with our andit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, eonsider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
finanecial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. |

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. |
‘When we read the other sections of the Fan Milk Ple 2019 Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with Qm.'ernmme for the financial
statermnents

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Finaneial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act, the Finanecial Reporting Couneil of Nigeria Act, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary Lo enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to |
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as epplicable, matters related to going concern and using the going

concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liguidate the company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so. {

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finaneial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit condueted in
accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

+ Dbtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability te continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw sttention in our auditer’s report Lo the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as & going coneern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial stalements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other metters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

' We also provide those charged with governanee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

l The Companies and Allied Matters Act requires that in carrying out our audit we consider and report to you on
the following matters. We confirm that:

i)  we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

ii) the company has kept proper books of account, so far as appears from our examination of those books and
returns adequate for our audit have been received from branches not visited by us;

iii) the company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are in agreement with the books of account.

For: PricewaterhouseCoopers 2g.July 2020
Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria

Engagement Partner: Edafe Erhie
| FRC/2013/ICAN/ 00000001143
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an Milk Plc is commirted to the principles and

practice that promote good Corporate

Governance,
We recognize that sound corporate governance
practices are necessary for effective management and
control of the Company's business with a view to
maximizing the shareholders' value and meeting the
expectations of other stakeholders. In furtherance of
the commitment to high ethical conduct, we regularly
review our processcs and practices to ensurc
compliance with the legislative and best practice
changes in the global corporate governance

environment,

The Board of Directors have the ulumate responsibility
for the overall functioning of the Company.

The responsibilides of the Board include setting the
Company's strategic objectives, providing leadership to
put them into effect, supervising the management of
the business, etc. At the moment, the Board is
composed of six (6) members including a Non-
Executive Chairman, two Executve Directors, two
independent Non-Executive Directors, and one Non-
Executive Director.

The Directors are experienced stakeholders with
diverse professional backgrounds in Accounting,

BT -2

Commerce, Management, Legal and information
Technology, etc.

The Directors are men of impeccable character and
integrity. The Company is indeed delighted to have a
versatile Board with understanding of its
responsibilities to Shareholders, Regulatory

Authorides and Government.

The meetings of the Board are scheduled well in
advance and the Board meets regularly. The record

of attendance of Directors at Board meetings during
2019 is available for inspection at the Annual

General Meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Coopany esmbliched an Audic Committee in
compliance with Section 359(6) of the Companies

and Allied Matters Act, Cap C20, Laws of the
Federation of Nigeria, 2004. The Committee is
comprised of three representatives of shareholders
{elected annually at the AGM), and three Non-
Executive Directors. Mr. Adekunle Odesanya chaired

the Committee during the year under review.

fgﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁ”



Your numm
Ice-cream

brand




| R

CORPORATE
SOCIAL
ONSIBILITY

eponrt

Fan Milk Plc “the Company” is committed to conducting
its business in a transparent, socially and environmentally
responsible manner. The Company joined the UN Global
Compact in 2010, As part of the Fan Milk Group your
company is constantly working on introducing the UN
Global Compact charter to all business partners.

ETHICS

The Company prides itself as an ethical corporate citizen
and operates in accordance with the Laws of Nigera, The
Company also complies with all relevant statutory
regulations and local laws in the country. During the year,
the Company intensified its Compliance programme for
all employees to strengthen the internal controls and
corporate governance by rolling out the Compliance
Fundamental at Danone training for Employees covering
key business areas including Code of Business Conduct
Policy, Integrity policy and Code of Business Partnering
with Suppliers.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY TOWARDS
EMPLOYEES-

Fan Milk Plc constantly strives towards offering fair and
market conform compensation and benefit packages to
all staff based on benchmarks received from various
sources. As for previous years your company continues
to provide staff amenities at all major sites as well as
free canteen facilities at the factory in Ibadan and in
Lagos.

The company runs two health clinics in Lagos and 26

Ibadan respectively and the company is committed to
the development of a good working environment for

its employees.

SAFETY HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT -

The Company continued the Safety Health and
Environmental (SHE} while embedding the WISE
(Wotk In Safe Environment) culture for all employees

and people while on Fan Milk sites with a view to
preventing work related injuries, understanding the
company's risk management process as well as
complying with Safety Health and Environmental laws
and regulations. This journey we expect to continually

improve the SHE performance with zero injury goals,

Also, during the year, the Food Safety and Quality Policy
was intensified with the continuous awareness and
training to deliver the Company's commitment to
manufacture products in compliance with Food Safety
Management System [SO22000- 2005 which includes
adherence to Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Points (HACCP) Principles.

Fan Milk Ple offers an Employee Health Management
Scheme in which both employees and their spouses and
children benefits from Company paid health and
medical care,



Your Company continuously assesses the safety, health
and environmental impact of its operation on both
employees and the general public, Members of staff are
regularly screed in conformity with the Nigerian health
regulations.

Fan Milk Ple continues to emphasise on safety at the
workplace by setting and enforcing high standards of the
working environment within factory, distrbution centres
and offices. Safety inductions have been carried out
regularly for newly employed staff introducing them to
the safety procedures of the company. This has been
coupled with health and safety training cutting across
departments within the organisaton,

The Safety Committee has throughout the year under
review worked through participation from the various
departments to respond to safety needs and to carry out
monthly safety enlightenments and safety awareness
training within the organisation.

The company's environmental activities and plans forms
an integrated part of your company's overall strategies
and business plans. Further your company has developed
detailed plans for proper effluent treatment, which has
been approved by relevantauthotites

TRAINING

The Company takes pride to say its employees are its
major assets and that continuous on-the-job training and
external training courses to improve the employees skill
sets with the ever evolving business environment we
currently operate are fundamental to the growth of the
Company.

The Company also carries out vatious systematic training

o i AR

for its Agents and Vendors through the FAN Academy
with series of Sales training which took place in 2019,
Sales Academy classroom training was carried out
across our Sales regions and our vendors were not left
out either. Also, field coaching was constantly carried
our as a follow up to classroom training to ensure that
Sales team are properly equipped and ensuring that our
Vendors and Agents understand the key handling
requirements of the company's products.

ONE PIANET ONE HEALTH

As part of our commitment to protect the environment
and actualize our vision of One Planet, One Health: we
partnered with Lagos State Ministry for the
Environment, Ministry of Education and Lagos State
Parks & Gardens Agency to plant 100 trees in

commemaoration of Danone 100 years anniversary. The
tree planting exercise served to replenish earth's
resources and beatify the environment on the
celebration of the World Environment Day.
Additionally, we organised the Independence Day
street clean-up event to create awareness for care of the
environment
' LAUNCH OF DANONE ONE PLANET ONE HEALTH
INCOMMEMORATION OF WORLD |

2019

i ' partnership wi
and Laggs [ Pavith
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The Companies and Allied Matters Act reguires Lhe directors to prepare finaneial statements for each financial year
that give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the company at the end of each financial year and of its
profit or loss. The responsibilities inelude ensuring that the company:

a.  Keeps proper accounling records that diselose with reasonable accuracy, the finaneial position of the company and
com ply with the requirement of the Companies and Allied Matlers Acl.

b.  Designs, implements and mainlains internal conlrol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
stalements that arve free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; and

¢.  Prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasemable and prudent
judgments and estimaltes that are consistently applied.

The direclors aceepl responsibility for the annual report and financial statements which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates in conformity with the
International Financial Reporling Standards and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Mallers Acl.

The directors are of the opinion thal the finanecial stalements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial
affairs of the company and of its profit or loss. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of
accounting records thal may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements as well as adequale systems of
internal financial control.

s L

Mr. 0.0. Akinkughe Mr. Ferdinand Mouko
Chairman Managing Director
FRC/zoz0/002 /00000021130 FRC/zo20/002 /00000020001

28th July zoz20
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note 31 December 31 December
2019 2018
CONTINUING OPERATIONS N'ooo N'ooo
Revenue from contracts with customers [ 13,473,580 11,101,300
Cosl of sales 7 (7,360,160} (6,730,452)
Gross profit 0,113,429 4,430,913
Distribution expenses i (2.972,821) (2,411,818)
Administrative expenses 7 (2,153,118) {(1,908,8006)
Impairment losses on financial assels 14.1 (9,354) (6,020)
Other income 4] 133,310 188,154
Operating profit/(loss) 1,110,446 292,024
Finance income 10 - 13,606
Finance cosls 10 (215,171} (453.588)
Finance costs-net (215,171) (439,982)
Profit /(Loss) before tax Bgh,275 (147,358)
Profit /(Loss) for the yvear 461,779 (95,290)
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Deferred tax credit from other reserves on land il - -
Actuarial gain/(loss) on posl em ploy ment benefit obligatlions (nel of Lax) 11 - -
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax - -
Income/(Loss) attributable to:
Owners of the com pany 461,779 (95.290)
461,779 (95,290)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to:
Owners of the com pany 461,779 {95,200)
461,779 (95,290)
Income/(Loss) per share
Basic (koba) 17 40 (8)
Diluted (koha) 17 40 (8)

The accounting policies and notes on pages 15 to 58 form an integral part of these financial slatements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Note 21 December a1 December
2019 2018
N'ooo N 000
ASSETS
Non eurrent assets
Property, plant and equipment 12.1 R.503,4273 5,484,427
Intangible assels 12,2 4,745 0,334
Deferred tax assel 18 252,173 223,970
Total non-current assets 5,700,341 5,714,731
Current assets
Deferred tax asset 18 20,572 188,628
Invenlories 13 2,502,807 1,382,601
Trade and other receivables 14 778,586 827,003
Cash and cash equivalents 15 850,553 65,253
Total current assets 4,251,514 2,463,485
Total asscts 10,011,855 B, 178,216
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability 18 154,132 41,0600
Em ployment benefit obligations 19 671,635 F7H.689
Horrowings 20 % 61.753
Total non-current liabilities 825,767 682,051
Current liabilities
Borrowings 20 450,007 614,502
Trade and other payables 21 4,108,232 2,000,778
Contract liabilities (1 434,418 241,002
Dividend payable 22 2,437 2,437
Currenl income tax liabililies 11 185,298 57.350
Total eurrent liabilities 5,189,392 3,001,249
Total liabilities 6,015,159 4,643,300
Net asscts 3,990,606 3.534,916
EQUITY
Ordinary share capital 10 581,517 581,517
Share premium 10 4,241,575 4:241,575
Oher reserve 362,276 262,276
General reserve or accumulated loss (1,188,672) (1,650,452)
Total equity 3,996,690 3,534,910
Total equity and liabilities 10,011,855 B,178,216
The accounting policies and noles on pages 15 Lo 58 form an inlegral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements and notes on pages 11 to 60 were approved for issue by the board of directors on July zoz0

and signed on its behalf by:

Y T~ P

Mr. 0.0. Akinkugbe Mr. Titus Owoeye, FCA Mr. Ferdinand Mouko
Chairman Finance Director Managing Direclor
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at 1 January 2018

Loss for the yvear

Loan converted to equity

Exchange gain on quasi-cquity loan
Share issue transaction costs

Other com prehensive income
Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2018

Change in accounting policy

At 1January 2019
Profit for the yvear
Total comprehensive income

At 31 December 2019

499,908 1,098,865 362,276 (1,514,408) 446,641
- - - (05.200) {95,290)
81,600 3,182,742 - 3,264,351
- - - (40,753) (40,753)

- (40,032) - - (40,032)
81,609 3,142,710 - (136,043) 3,088,276
581,517 4,241,575 362,276 (1,650,452) 3,534,917
581,517 4,241,575 362,276 (1,650,452) 3,534,917
- - 461,779 461,779

_ = = 461,779 461,779
581,317 4.241.575 362,276  (1,188,672) 3,996,696
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Note
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24
Income Laxes paid 11
Post em ploy ment benefits paid 1
Net cash inflow from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12.1
Interest received 10
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 23.1
Purchase of intangible assets 12.2

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Interesl paid 10
Repay ment of borrowings

Payment of principal portion of lease

Share issue expenses

Net cash outflow from financing activities
Net inerease in eash and eash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 15

Cash and eash equivalents at the end of year 15

The accounting policies and notes on pages 1 5 to 58 form an integral part of these financial stalements.
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31 December
2019

N'ooo

31 December
z018

N'ooo

3,040,575

2,351,007

(54,170) (6,853)
(21,612) (71,713)
2,004,703 2,252,441
(1,762,370) (1,822,055)
- 5,837

14,111 134,552

- (4,802)

(1,748,259)

(1,6806,468)

(50,415) {123,216)
(207,680) (301,581)
(37.380)
- (40,032)
(205,481) (554,020)
021,053 11,044
(226,422} (237.,4606)
604,631 (za26,422)
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NI]TES T0 THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

21

2.1.1

General information

Fan Milk Plc was incorporated as a Limited Liability company on 4 November 1961 and was converted on 5 October 1995 to a
public limited liability company. The company has a factory located in Ibadan and is engaged in the production and distribution
of dairy, juice and food products. Fan Milk Pl is a subsidiary of Danish Dairy Services A/S Denmark (Fan Milk International
A /S 99.3% of the share capital of the company is owned by Danish Dairy Services A /S Denmark and 0.7% owned by Nigerian
individuals and corporate investors. Fan Milk Pl is a public unlisted company but its shares are tradeable on NASD,

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise  stated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ("IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("LASB"). Additional information
required by National regulations is included where appropriate.

The financial statements comprise the statement of profit orloss and other comprehensive income, the statement of financial
position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical cost concept.
The management of Fan Milk considers the following to be the most important accounting policies for the company. In
applying these accounting policies, management makes certain judgements and estimates that affect the reported amounts of
asscts and liabilities at the year end date and the reported revenues and expenses during the financial year, The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements
are disclosed in nore 5.

The financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira, rounded to the nearest  thousand.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, although the Company had a net profitof N461.8million
{2018: Net loss N95.3million) for the year ended 31 December 2019 and had a net current lability of N0.9 billion (2018: 1.5
billion) as at 31 December 2019. The Company relies mainly on Emidan A /5 - its sister company for imported raw materials,

Fan Milk Nigeria had significant increase in sales during the year which is due to the relaunch of FanVanille and introduction of

FanUp in prior year. The company experienced major month on month increase in sales performance.

The company carried out a relaunch of the FanVanille product range and introduced a new product (Fan Up) in pricr year which
in tarn significantly improved the sales performance of the company in 2019 where the company saw significant month on

month increases in sales performance .

In curtent year, Fan Milk Nigera also introduced new products in the ice cream vatiant called Go Slo in the year which are
expected to raise sales levels and also there are plans to introduce the valorsed diary products into the Nigerdan Market within
the next two years.

The directors have no doubt that the Company will remain in existence after 12 months.
111 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

2.1.1.1 New and amended standards adgpted by the Company

The Company has applied IFRS 16 Leases with a date of inidal application of 1 January 2019 and has changed its
accounting policies for lease contracts. The Company has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach
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NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

explained below:

a. Leases - Accounting Policy from 1 January 2019
At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of tme in exchange for
consideration, To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

- the contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and should be physically
distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset. If the supplicr has a substantive
substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

- the Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the
period of use; and

- the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when it has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used.

In rare cases where the decision about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the Company has the
right to direct the use of the assetif either:

- the Company has the right to operate the asset; or

- the Company designed the assetin a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be
used. This policy is applied to contracts entered into, or changed, on or after 1 January 2019,

The company's leases include plots of land and buildings (office space). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions, including extension
and termination options, The lease terms range from 2 years to 37 years. The lease agreements do

not impose any covenants - however, leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The company has elected to separate lease and non-lease
components and treat them accordingly.

Undl the 2018 financial year, leases of property were classified as either finance or operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased

asset is available for use by the company. Each lease payment is allocated berween the liability and finance cost. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a steaight-line basis.
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I Changes in accounting policies

Impact of adoption of IFRS 16
This note explains the impact of the adoption of IFRS 16: Leases on the company's financial statements,

The Company has adopted IFRS 16 retrospectively from 1 Jaouary 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the 2018
reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments
atising from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening balance of equity on 1 January 2019, As a result, there

wis no impact on retained earnings. The new accountng policies are disclosed in note 1.

Practical expedients applied
In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the company has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

- using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

- electing not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial applicaton. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transidon date the company relied on its assessment made applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

Impact on the financial statements

On adoption of IFRS 16, the company recognised lease liabilities in relaton to leases which had previously been classified
as "operating leases' under the principles of IAS 17, These liabilitics were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the company's incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019, The incremental
borrowing rate applied to the each lease contract on 1 January 2019 ranged from 22.24%-24.52% depending on the
location of the asset and the asset type.

N'ooo
Operating lease commilments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 A
Add: adjustments as o result of a different treatment of extension and termination  options 0,840
Lizase liabilities recognised as ot 1 January 2019 39,840
Current lease liabilities 37.851
Non-current lease liabilities 1,005
39,840

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured at the amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the statement of finaneial position as at 31 December 2018. There
were no onerous lease contracts that would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following lypes of  assels:

g1 Dee 2019 1Jan 2019

N'ooo N'ooo

Buildings 130,845 151,116
Total Right-of-use assets igo. 845 151,116

The following table summarises the impact of the transition to IFRS 16 on the statement of financial position as at 1 January 2019 for
each affected individual line item. Line items that were not affected by the changes have not been included. The adoption of IFRS 16
had a nil impact on opening equity as at 1 Janvary 2019,
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Asat 31
December Impact of IFRS 16 Asat1
2018 Reclassification | Remeasurement | Jan 2019
N'0o0o0 N'000 N'000 N'ooo0

Assets
Right-of-use
assets - 111,267 39,849 151,116
Prepayment 111,267 (111,267) - -
Liabilities
Non-current
Lease liabilities ) _ 1,998 1,998
Current
Lease liabilities } _ 37,851 37,851

2.1.2  New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after 31
December 2019, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. Management is yet to assess the effect of the following
standards on the financial statements of the Company.

a. IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts effective for annual periods beginning 1 January 2021

The new standard establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and
supersedes IFRS4 InsuranceContracts. The standard outlines a General Model, which is modified for insurance contracts with direct
participation features, described as the Variable Fee Approach. The General Model is simplified if certain criteria are met by measuring
the liability for remaining coverage using the Premium Allocation Approach. The General Model will use current  assumptions to
estimate the amount, timing and uncertainty of future cashflows and it will explicitly measure the cost of that uncertainty, it takes into
account market interest rates and the impact of policy holders' options and guarantees. The implementation of the Standard is likely to
bring significant changes to an entity’s processes and systems, and will require much greater coordination between many functions of
the business, including finance, actuarial and IT. It is effective for annual pedods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. The Company
does not intend to adopt the amendments before its effective date and is yet to assess the full impact of the amendments on its
financial statements.

b. Conceptual framework for financial reporting - Revised

The revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework)is not a standard, and none of the concepts
overide those in any standard or any requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist the Board in
developing standards, to help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all
parties to understand and interpret the standards, It is effective for annual periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2020, The Company does
not intend to adopt the amendments before its effective date and is yet to assess the full impact of the amendments on its financial

Statements.
Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presemtation cwrrency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ("the functional currency’).

The financial statements are presented in thousands (Naira), which is the Company’s presentation currency,
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(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the

transactons.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated with the closing rate as at the reporting date. Non-monetary
iterms measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of inidal
recognition; non-monetary items in a foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreipn currency transactions and from the translation at
year- end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are presented in the statement of profit or loss, within finance
costs. All other foraign exchange pains and losses are presented in the statement of profit or loss on a net basis within

Opcranng expenscs.
2.3 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings comprises mainly of factories and offices. Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods, or for administrative purposes are stated in the balance sheet at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, Historical costincludes the expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or tecognised as a scparate asser, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they
areincurred.

Assers under construction are carried ar cost less any recognised impairment loss. Cost directly related to the project and
incremental costs includes professional fees which are capitalised in accordance with the company's accounting policy.
Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for theirintended use.

Leasehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method to write off the cost of each asset over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

%

Huiltl'i:rlg:u 2

Plant and machinery 1o
Furniture and fAttings 20
Mhlk crates S0
Motor vehicles 25
Comservators, bicveles and boxes 20
Spare parts 50

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting perod.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
to sell and value in use. Impairment losses and reversal of previously recognised impairment losses are recognised within "operating
expense” in profit or loss.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within 'other
income or other expenses - net' in profit or loss.

24 Intangible assets

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of three to five years.
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2.5 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At each balance sheet date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of

the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any).

Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the company estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset  belongs, Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the esimates of

future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than the carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or

CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

2.6 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materdals, direct labour, other direct costs and relared production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. 'Goods in transit' and 'non trade stocks' are valued at invoice price
together with other directly attributable charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,

less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution,

2,7  Financial assets

2.7.1 Classification and measurement
It is the Company's policy to initially recognise financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profic or loss which are expensed in profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement is dependent on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the
cashflow characteristics of the asset. On this basis, the Company may classify its financial instruments atamortised cost, fair
value through profit or loss and at fair value through other comprehensive  income.

» Amortised cost: Financial assets in this category are held by the Company solely to collect contractual cash flows and these
cash flows represents solely payments of principal and interest. Assets held under this business model are measured at amortised
COSL

» Fair value through other comprehensive income: Financial assets in this category are held to collect contractual cash flows and
sell where there are advantageous opportunities. The cash flows represents solely payment of principal and interest, These
financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

* Fair value through profit or loss: This category is the residual category for financial assets that do not meet the criteria
described above. Financial assets in this category are managed in order to realise the asset's fair value.

Solely Payments of Principal and Interest: Where the business model is to collect contractual cash flows and held to collect and
sell, the Company assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. In
making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a
profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL.
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2.8
2.8.1

28,2

2.9

The business model for the Company's financial assets are held to collect contractual cashflows that are solely payments of
principal (for non-interest bearing financial assets) or solely payments of principal and interest ((for interest bearing
financial assets).

The Company's financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents. They are included in current
assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date. Interest income from these assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in finance income/cost,

Financial Liabilities

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilites,

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortsed cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redempton value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any fees or costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest rare
(EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, whete appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument, The
calculation takes into account all coneractual terms of the financial instrument and includes any fees or incremental costs
that are directly attrbutable to the instrument and are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), but not future

credit losses. - : .
The EIR amortdsation is included in interest expense in the statement of profit or loss,

Borrowings are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or wansferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs,

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extingnish
all or part of the liability {debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Impairment of financial assets
Recognition of impairment provisions under IFRS 9 is based on the expected credit loss (ECL) model. The ECL model is
applicable to financial assets classified at amortsed cost under IFRS 9: Financial instruments. The measurement of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount thar is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date, about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. The simplified approach is applied
for trade receivables while the general approach is applied to staff debtors, amounts due from related parties and cash at
bank.

The simplified approach requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. This
involves determining the expected loss rates using a provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical default rates
observed over the expected life of the receivable and adjusted forward-looking estimates, This is then applied to the gross

carrying amount of the receivable to arrive at the loss allowance for the period.
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The three-stage approach assesses impairment based on changes in credit risk since initial recognition using the past due

criterion and other qualitative indicators such as increase in politcal concerns or other macroeconomic factors and the rsk
of legal action, sanction or other regulatory penalties that may impair future financial performance. Financial assets
classified as stage 1 have their ECL measured as a proportion of their lifetime ECL that results from possible default events
that can occur within one year, while assets in stage 2 or 3 have their ECL measured on a lifetime  basis.

Under the three-stage approach, the ECL is determined by projecting the probability of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD) and exposure at default (EALY) for each ageing bucket and for each individual exposure. The PD is based on defaule
rates determined by external rating agencies for the counterparties. The 1.GD is determined based on management's
estimate of expected cash recoveries after considering the historical pattern of the receivable, and assessing the portion of
the outstanding receivable that is deemed to be irrecoverable at the reporting period. The EAD is the total amount
outstanding at the reporting petiod. These three components are multiplied together and adjusted for forward looking
information, such as the Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in Nigetia and inflation rate, to arrive at an ECL which is then
discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective
interest rate or an approximation  thereof,

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the related

financial assets and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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The Company holds the followigs financm] instnenents as at 31 Decemmber  200%

200% 20013
" OR PO
Finaae il asse s o ameriised cosd
Trade receavables 307 N 273,240
Related party recenvables 195,350 #9515
Statt debiors 45,745 30,470
Cash ond cash equivalents 859553 63,233
1,457,000 J68,487
Fimane ial liabilities af amoritied vosi
Bank borrowings 204,085 IRATO
Orwerdraft 164,922 291,675
Trade and other payables 4108233 L0778
4,567,240 3672123

Trade Receivables
The trade receivables represent the amount receivable from its customers for sale of goods. The expected creditloss rate for this receivable

is determined using a provision matrix  approach.

The provision martrix approach is based on the historical credit loss experience observed according to the behavior of customers over the
expected life of the receivable and adjusted for forward-looking estimates of relevant macroeconomic variables, The expected loss rates as
at 31 December 20019 arc as follows:

Age of receivables Current 31-60 G190 days 91-120 days Ower 120 days Total
days

N D0 IRl IR bR L1 I I IR
Liross l.'all:.'ir.g ANOANT 392619 1519 2933 935 23602 421 608
Diefault rate 017% B.76% 24.58% 36.95% 6. 33%
Lifetime ECL {B6T) {133 720 (345) (22 736) (24,602)
Tatal 391,952 1,386 2212 500 H66 307,16

Staff debrors

This requires a three-stage approach in recognising the expected loss allowance for staff debtors. The Company assessed the staff
debtors to determine the expected credit loss. Based on this assessment, the identified expected loss on the carrying amount of staff
debtors as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 is considered insignificant and has not been recognised. Staff debtors are
assessed to be in stage 1.

Amounts due from related parties

This requires a three-stage approach in recognising the expected loss allowance for amounts due from related parties. The Company
assessed the amounts due from related parties to determine the cxpcm:d credit loss. Based on this assessment, the identified expected
loss on this amountas at 31 December 2019 is considered to be insignificant. Amounts due from related parties areassessed tobein

stage 1.

Cash and cash equivalents

This requires a three-stage approach in recognising the expected loss allowance for cash and cash equivalents. The Company assessed
the cash and cash equivalents to determine the expected credit loss. Based on this assessment, the identified expected loss on cash as at 31
December 2019 is considered to beinsignificant. Cash and cash equivalent dare assessed to bein stage 1.
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211

Income and deferred tax

The tax expense for the period comprises income and deferred tax. 'Tax is recognised in arriving at profit or loss, except to the

extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

212

{a) Current rax

Income tax is calculated on the basis of the applicable tax laws enacted or substantially enacted in Nigeriaby  the date of the
statement of financial position and is recognised as an expense/ (income) for the period,

Where the company has tax losses that can be relieved against a tax liability for a previous year, it recognises those losses as an
asset, because the tax relief is recoverable by refund of tax previously paid. This asset is offset against an existing current tax
balance,

Where tax losses can be relieved only against taxable profits of futare periods, a deductible temporary  difference arises. Those
losses carried forward are set off against deferred tax liabilitdes earried in the statement of financial position.

The company does not offset income tax liabilities and current income tax assets.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising berween the tax bases of assers and
liabilitics and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted in Nigeria by the date of the statement of financial position and are expected to apply
when the telated deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arises from depreciation of property, plant and equipment, revaluation of certain financial
assets and liabilities, provisions for pensions and other post-employment benefits and carry-forward losses.

The tax effects of carry-forwards of wnused losses, unused tax credits and other deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which these losses and other temporary differences can be

utilised.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
asset or liability and is not discounted. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are reduced to the extent that

itis no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of equity instruments, which are recognised in other comprehensive income, is
also recognised in other comprehensive income and subsequently in profitor loss together with the deferred gain or loss,
Employee benefits

The Company operates both defined contribution and defined benefit retirement benefit scheme forits  employees.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation, A defined contribution plan is a
pension plan under which the company pays fixed contributions into a separare ennrty. The company has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior petiods,

(a) Defined contribution plan

In line with the Pension Reform Act 2004, the company operates a defined contribution scheme; employees are entitled to join the
scheme on confirmation of their employment. The employee and the company contributes 8% and 10% of the employee's basic,
transport and rent allowances respectively. The company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the furure payments is available.
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(b} Defined benefit plan

.13

(i} Gratuity scheme

The company operates a non-contributory defined benefits seheme. The employees'entitlement Lo retirement benefits under
the serviee gratuity scheme depends on the individual years of serviee, terminal salary and conditions of service. The liability
recognised in the statement of inancial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the financial reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, The defined benefit obligation is
ealeulated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit eredit method, The present value of the defined benefil
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using intercst rates of high-quality corporate
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity that
approximate the terms of the related pension obligation.

Current service costs represents the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from employec
service in the current period. The net interest cost is caleulated by applying the discount rate Lo the defined benefit obligation
This eost is included in employee benefit ex pense in the statement of profit or loss,

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or eredited
to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
Past-service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss,

(1) Long service award

The company provides employees with two (2) Long Service Award Benefits — a flat cash award expressed as a proportion o
Basic Salary together with a gift award. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the awards is the present
value of the long serviee award at the end of the financial reporting period less the fair value of the long service award's assels
together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service eosts. The long serviee award obligatior
is caleulated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit eredit method. The present value of the long service
award is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity that approximate the
terms of the related long service award liability.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising lrom experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumplions are recognised ir
the period in which they occur, directly in profit or loss. This cost is included in emplovee benelit expense in the statement o
profit or loss,

Leases

Leases in which significant portion of the risks and reward of ownership are retained by the lessor are elassified as operating
lease. Pavments made under operating leases (net of any incentive received from lessor) are charged to profit or loss on ¢
straight line basis over the period of the lease. Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease involve
the substantial Lransfer ofall the risks and rewards of ownership o the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases,

Assets held under inance leases are recognised as assets of the company at their fair value or, if lower, al the present value o
the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor i
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between financing charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constani
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finanece charges are charged directly against income, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the company’s policy or

borrowing costs,

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the useful life of such assets. Payments
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2.14

2,15

216

217

Finance Income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset
except for financial assets that subsequently become  credit-impaired. For credit-impaired hnancial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any otherinterest income is included in other  income.

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities are reported on a net basis as either
finance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss
position.

Finance Cost
Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective

interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial assets and financial liabilities are reported on a net basis as either
finance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss
position.

Statement OFf Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents arising during the period from operating
activities, investing activities and financing activities.

The cash flows from operating activities are determined by using the indirect method. Net income is therefore
adjusted by non-cash items, such as changes from receivables and liabilities. In addition, all income and expenses
from cash transactions that are attributable to investing or financing activities are  eliminated.

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposit held at call with banks, other
short term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. In the
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current  Labilities.

The cash flows from investing and financing activities are determined by using the direct method.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Provisions are liabilities that are uncertain in amount and timing, Provision are recognised when the company has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Where there is a number
of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in setdement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised evenif the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligadons may be small. Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past event and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-cccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
company or the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event that is not recognised because it is not
likely that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount can not be reliably
estimated.

Contingent liabilities normally comprise of legal claims under arbitration or court process in respect of which a
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liability is not likely to occur.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company,

Contingent assets are not recognised but they are disclosed in the financial statement when they arse.

2.18 Share capital

The Company has only one class of shares; ordinary shares. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. When new shares
are issued, they are recorded as share capital at their par value, The excess of the issue price over the par value is
recorded in the share premium reserve,

(a} Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition of a business
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(b) Dividends

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the Company's
shareholders. Dividends for the year that are declared after the date of the statement of financial position are dealt
with in the subsequent events note. Dividends proposed by the Directors' but not yet approved by members are
disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act.

2.19 Share premium and reserves

The nature and purpose of the reserves in equity are as
follows:

Share premium: Premiums from the issue of shares are reported in share premium.
General reserve /accumulated loss: Accumulated loss comprise the loss from previous years, which have not been
reclassified to the other reserves. The general reserve also shows the actuarial gains and losses atising from

experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions on employee gratuity after deduction of deferred
taxes,
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Other reserve: Other reserve shows increase and deerease on the revaluation of non-current assets prior
to the conversion of the Company's accounting standard to International Financial Reporting Standards. On
conversion, the cost and revaluation surplus of non-current assets was taken as deemed cost and no
subsequent revaluations have taken place. In the event of a sale of an asset, any balance in the reserve in
relation to the asset is transferred to retained earnings. Gains or losses are not recognised in profit or loss

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point in time in the following major product

Sale of diary Sale of
products Sale ofice cream juice Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Point in time 9,253 2576 644 13,474

The company does not generate revenue from any goods or services to be recognised over time.

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
The Company has recognised the following liabilities related to contracts with customers

N'ooo
Contract liabilities - customer deposits 105,478
Contract liabilities - rebates 328,040

ﬁ&ﬁxs

Aeccounting policies and significant judgements

Revenue recognition
The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods,

It is the Company’s policy to recognize revenue from a contract when it has been approved by both parties,
rights have been clearly identified, payment terms have been defined, the contract has commercial
substance, and collectability has been ascertained as probable. The probability that a customer would make
payvment (collectability criteria) is ascertained based on the Company's internal risk assessment conducted
for customers as stated in the eredit management policy.

Definition of a customer
A customer is a party that has contracted with the Company to obtain goods that are an output of the
entity's ordinary activities in exchange for consideration.

Identification of performance obligation
At inception, the Company assesses the goods stated in the invoice sent to a customer to identify as a
performance obligation, each promise to transfer to the customer either a distinet good or series of distinct
goods., The identification of performance obligations is a erucial part in determining the amount of
consideration recognised as revenue. This is due to the fact that revenue is only recognised at the point
where the performance obligation is fulfilled.

Accounting policies and significant judgements

Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideraton towhich it EXPects to be entitled in exchange for those  goods.

It is the Company’s policy to recognize revenue from a contract when it has been approved by both parties, rights
have been clearly identified, payment terms have been defined, the contract has commercial substance, and
collectability has been ascertained as probable. The probability that a customer would make payment (collectability
criteria) is ascertained based on the Company's internal risk assessment conducted for customers as stated in the
credit management policy.
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Definition of a customer

A customer is a party that has contracted with the Company to obtain goods that are an output of the entity's
ordinary activities in exchange for consideration.

Identification of performance obligation

At inception, the Company assesses the goods stated in the invoice sent to a customer to identify as a performance
obligation, each promise to transfer to the customer either a distinct good or series of distinct goods. The
identification of performance obligations is a crucial part in determining the amount of consideration recognised as
revenue. This is due to the fact that revenue is only recognised at the point where the performance obligation is
fulfilled.

Sale of goods

The Company manufactures and sells dairy products, ice cream and juice, Sales are recognised ata pointin time when
control of the products has been transferred, being when the products are delivered to the wholesaler or when the
wholesaler picks up the goods from the entity's premises, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler's acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the tisks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company
has objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

Right of return

It is the Company's policy to allow customers to return products after delivery within a certain time frame based on
quality issues. Therefore, a refund liability (included in trade and other payables) and a right to the returned goods
(included in other current assets) are recognised for the products expected to be returned. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate such returns at the time of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method). The expected refunds to
customers was assessed to be 0.04% of revenue which is considered to be immarerial.

Recognition of contract assets and liabilities

Fan Milk Ple presents contract assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position to reflect the requirements
of IFRS 15. Asat 31 December 2019, contract liabilities of N3.96 million (2018: 291.09 million) has been recorded.
This relate to advance payments from customers and also volume rebates earned by vendors and customers both of
which can be used as consideration for purchase of goods.

Financing components

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the
Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

2.21 Comparatives
Except when a standard or an interpretation permits or requires otherwise, all amounts are reported or disclosed

with comparative information. Where IAS 8 applies, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with
changes in presentation in the current year,
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Financial Risk Management

Introduction and Overview

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including the effects of changes in foreign
currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise the potential adverse effects on its financial
statements. Risk management is carried out by management of the Company under policies approved by the
board of directors. Management identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks. All of the company's financial
assets and liabilities are carried atamortised cost.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of a counterparty defaulting on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss
to the company. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and current account balances with banks and
Anancial institations, as well as credit exposures to outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

Risks limits are set based on internal and external ratings in accordance with limits set by the Company's finance
department.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the group, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period of greater than 120 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses within operatdng profit.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line  item,

Management of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk are primarily cash and cash equivalents
and trade receivables. Trade receivables are mainly derived from salesto  customers.

Trade receivables consist of invoiced amounts from normal trading activities. The Company has customers
throughout Nigeria. Strict credit control is exercised through monitoring of cash received from customers and,
when necessary, impairment is made following the new IFRS 9 standards. As at December 31, 2019 management
was unaware of any significantunprovided credit risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 respectively,
is represented by the net carrying amounts of the financial assets in the statement of financial position.

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
Treade cecervables (Grooss) 421,008 302,662
Related party recervables 195,556 0% 518
Staff debtors 45,785 30 ATH
Cash and cash equsvalents 830 553 65,253
Giross amount 1,522,501 497 53
Irpamement of tinmneinl assers (note 14.1) {24002 (20.416)
Mot mmount 1,497 899 468,487

Reconciliation of gross carrving amount of trade  reccivables 31 December 31 December
2019 2018
Gross carmvingg amount as at 1 January 302662 358,673
Revenue from contracts with customers 13,473,589 11,161 566
Recepts from customers (13 340,473) {11,200, 606)
Receivables wotten off as uncollectble (14, 168) {16,771)
Giross carrymg amount a5 at 31 December 421,608 302,662

48




FANMILK PLC | 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Due from related parties

2.2.4

Amounts due from related parties arise as a resull of expense ineurred on behall of related parties thatl are
expected to be reimbursed. The company applies the IFRS 9 general model for measuring expected credit losses
(ECL) on amounts due from related party asthey donot meet the criteria for applying the simplified approach.
The general model uses a three-stage approach in recognising the expected loss allowance, The expected credit
losses on related parly receivables was insignificant and the loss allowance was deemed immaterial.

Staff loans

The company applies the IFRS o general model for measuring expected credit losses (ECL) on its staff loans. The
company applies the IFRS ¢ general model for measuring expected credit losses (ECL) on staff loans as they do
not meet the eriteria for applying the simplified approach.. The general model uses a three-stage approach in
recognising the expecled loss allowance, The expected credit losses on stafl loan was insignificant and the loss
allowance was deemed immalerial.

Cash and eash equivalents
The Com pany also assessed the cash and cash equivalents Lo delermine their expected eredil losses. Based on this

assessment, they identified the expected losses on cash as at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 to be
insignificant, as the loss rate is deemed immaterial. Cash are assessed tobe in stage 1.

Credit quality of cash and cash equivalents 41 December 31 December
2019 2018
N'ooo N'o00

Credit gualitly derived using external eredit rating
A4 78,428 6,750
A- 5,100 -
AN - R
AAA+ 114,725 22,578
B+ 58 -
B 147,762 5,102
B- RE,098 -
BRE - 44
BEL- - 12,671
Non-rated 258,346 17,900
859,553 63,253

The credit rating for cash and eash equivalent balances are based on national long-term rating of Fitch Ratings.

Credit concentrations

There is no concenlralion of credit risk with respect to trade and other receivables as the Company has a large
number of customers which are dispersed within Nigeria.
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3.3 Liquidity risk

3.3.1 Management of liquidity risk

The Company has incurred indebtedness in the form of overdrafts but also has significant cash balances. The
Company evaluates its ability to meet its obligations on an ongoing basis. Based on these evaluatons, the
Company devises strategies to manage its liquidity risk.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies that sufficient cash is maintained and that sufficient funding is
available through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. The company has no limitation placed oniits
borrowing capability.

3.3.2 Maturity analysis

The table below analyses financial liabilities of the Company into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at date of the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Ower | year but

less than
31 December 2019 - - S - = Eyears Logal
(N0
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Bank borrowings 24,564 130,064 139 455 204 083
Bank overdealt 164,922 164922 Teade and
other pavables 3,043,604 3043 604 Total
financial Labilitics 189,486 130,066 3,183,059- 3,502,611

Owver | year but
less than
L - ; =365 day Eucars Lotal

31 December 2018 2
("0

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

50



FANMILK PLC | 2019 ANNUAL REPORT

Expected eredit loss
Trade receivables

The company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach in measuring the expeeted eredit losses (ECL) which
caleulates a lifetime expectled loss allowance (ECL) for its trade receivables. The expected eredit losses on trade
receivables asal 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 and the average loss rale are shown in note 2.9.

Estimation uncertainty in measuring impairment loss

In establishing sensitivity to ECLestimates for trade receivables, two variables (GDP growth rate and Inflation
rate) were considered. OF these variables, the Company's receivables portiolio reflects greater responsiveness to
inflation rates.

The table below shows information on the sensitivity of the carrying amounts of the Company s finanecial assets
to the methods, assumplions and estimates used in calculaling impairment losses on those financial assels al the
end of the reporting period. Changes to these methods, assumplions and estimales may resull in material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of the Company's financial assets,

Expected cash flow recoverable:

The table below demonstrates the sensilivily loa 20% change in the expecled cash flows from trade receivables,
with all other variables held constant:

Effect on
profit before
tax

2019

N'ooo
Increase/decrease in estimaled cash Mows
+20% 4,920
20% (4,920)

Forward looking maero-economie variables:
This table shows the sensitivily of the expected credit loss to changes in each forward-looking macro variables,

with all other variables held constant:
31 December

Increase [ decrease in inflation rate 2019
N'ooo

Increase +10% (12,7806)
Decrease -10% 12,780
Increase [ decrease in GDP growth rate 31 December
2019

N'ooo

Increase +10% {15)
Decrease -10% 13
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Prudent liquidity risk management implies thal sufficient cash is mainlained and that sufficient funding is
available through an adequate amount of commilled eredit facilities. The company has nolimitation placed on
its borrowing capability.

3.3.2 Maturity analysis
The table below analyses financial liabilities of the Company into relevanl malurily groupings based on the
remaining period at date of the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash Mlows:

Over 1 year

but less
31 December 2019 31-9odays g1-18odays 181-365 days than 5yvears Total
(N'ooo)
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Bank borrowings 24,504 130,066 139455 - 204,085
Bank overdrafl 164,022 - - - 164,022
Trade and other pavables - - 3,043,604 - 3,043,604
Total financial liabilities 189,480 130,006 :i,tﬂggnr!q - 3,502,611

Over 1 year

but less
31 December 2018 31-9odays 91-180days 181-365 days than 5 vears Total
(N'ooo)
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Bank borrowings 24,504 130,000 173,287 01,753 A80,670
Loans from related parties - - - - -
Bank overdrafl 291,675 - - - 291,675
Trade and other pavables - 2,532, 680 - a,5%2,680
Total financial liabilities 316,239 130,066 2,705,067 61,753 3,214,025

3.4 Market risk

The Company takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will Nuetuate because of changes in markel prices such as inlerest rales and foreign
exchange rates.

3.4.1  Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk for changes in markel interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term obligalions with a loating interest rale. To manage this risk, the Company’s policy is Lo conlract [or
best interest rale borrowings when lerms offered are attraclive.

The sensilivily analysis for interest rate risk shows how changes in the fair value or future cash lows of a
financial instrument will Quetuate because of changes in markel rates at the reporting date.

a1 December 2019 Carrying Variable Fixed Non interest-

(N'ooa) amount interest interest hearing

Assets

Trade and other receivables 687,615 - - 687,615

Cash and cash equivalents 850,55 - 859,553 z
1,547,168 % 850,553 687,015
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3.3.2

a.4.1

Liquidity risk
Management of ligquidity risk

The Company has incurred indebtedness in the form of overdrafts but also has significant cash balances. The
Company evaluates its ability to meet its obligations on an ongoing basis. Based on these evaluations, the
Company devises stralegies Lo manage ils liquidity risk.

Prudent liguidity risk management implies that sufficient cash is maintlained and that sufficient funding is
available through an adegquate amount of committed credil facilities. The company has nolimitation placed on
ils borrowing capabilily.

Maturity analysis

The table below analyses financial liabilities of the Company into relevanl maturity groupings based on the
remaining period al date of the statement of financial position Lo the contractual maturily date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

Over 1 year

but less
31 December 2019 g1-g0davs 91 -180 days 181-365days than 5 yvears Total
(N'ooo)
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Bank borrowings 24,564 130,066 139,455 - 204,085
Bank overdrafl 164,022 - - - 164,022
Trade and other payables - - 3,043,604 - 9,043,604
Total financial liabilities 189,486 130,066 3,183,059 - 3,502,611

Over 1 year

but less
a1 December 2018 21-90davs 91 -180 days 181- 365 days than 5 vears Total
(N'ooo)
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Bank borrowings 24,504 130,060 173,287 61,753 389,670
Loans from related parties - - - - -
Bank overdrafl 291,675 - = = 201,675
Trade and other payables - 2,532,680 - 2,532,680
Total financial liabilities 216,239 130,060 2,705,007 61,753 3,214,025

Market risk

The Company takes on exposure lo market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofa
financial instrument will luctuate because of changes in markel prices such as inlerest rates and foreign
exchange rales,

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk for changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s

long-lerm obligations with a floaling interest rale. To manage this risk, the Company's poliey is Lo contracl lor
best inlerest rale borrowings when lerms offered are atlraclive.

The sensilivily analysis for inlerest rale risk shows how changes in the fair value or fulure cash flows of a
financial instrument will luctuate hecause of chanees in market rates at the renortine date.
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3-4-2

Bank overdrafl 291,675 - 291,675 -
Trade and other payables 2,900,778 - - 2,000,778
3,072,123 = 681,345 2,990,778

The table below shows the impact on the Company's profit before tax if interest rates on variable interest
financial instruments held al amortised cost had inereased or decreased by 100 basis points, with all other
variables held constant,

31 December 31 December
20110 2018

Effect of 100 basis poinls movemenl on profit before Lax (N'oon) = -

Foreign exchange risk

The Company secks lo reduce ils foreign currency exposure Lthrough a policy of malching, as far as possible,
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies.

The Company imporls raw malerials, spare parls and equipment from overseas and therefore is exposed Lo
foreign exchange risk arising from CFA, Buro and USD exposures. Management is responsible for minimising
the effect of the currency exposure by buying foreign currencies when rates are relatively low and using them
Lo settle bills when due.

1,478,804 1,200,311
a1 December 2019 (N'ooo) Euro CFA Dollar
Assets
Trade and other receivables - - .
Cash and cash equivalenlts - - -
Total - - B,
Liabilities
Bank borrowings 2 3 .
Bank overdrafl = Z -
Trade and other pavables 667 20,447 5.100
Total o067 29,447 5,100
41 December 2018 (N'ooo) Euro CFA Dollar
Assets
Trade and other receivables - - 1,500
Cash and cash equivalents = B -
Total - - 1,500
Liabilities
Bank borrowings - -
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31 December zo19 (N'ooo) Euro CFA
Assets

Trade and other receivables - -
CCash and cash equivalents - -
Total - -
Liabilities

Bank borrowings - -
Bank overdrall - =
Trade and other payables 667 29,447
Total 667 29,447
21 December 2018 (N'ooo) Euro CFA
Assets

Trade and other receivables - -
Cash and cash equivalents - -
Total - -
Liabilities

Bank borrowings -
Trade and other payables 050 4,084
Total 956 4,984

The table below shows the impact on the Company’s profit and equily if the exchange rate between
Dollar /CEA/Euroand the Nigerian Naira had inereased or decreased by 1%, with all other variables hel

31 December 31 De

2019

LEffect of 1% movemenl in EUR on profit before lax (N'ooo) -
LEffect of 1% movemenl in USD on profit before tax (N'ooo) 15,557
Effect of 1% movemenl in CFA on profil before tax (N'ooo) 140
15,697
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Financial instruments measured at fair value

IFRS 7 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to Lthose valuation techniques
are observable or unobservable. Observable input reflect market data obtained from independent sources;
unobservable inputs reflect the Company's market assum ptions. These two tvpes of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:

o Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liahilities.

o Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

s Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data (unobservable inputs).
Al the reporting date (2zo17: Nil), the company did not have any financial assets or liabilitics measured at fair
value. All financial assets and liabilities are carried al amortised cost.,

Fair value of all the nancial instruments al amorlised cost are at level 3.

Financial instruments measured at amortised cost

At 31 December zo1g H At 31 December 2018

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
N'O00 N'oOoo N'ooo N'ooo
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 859,553 850,553 65,253 05,253
Trade and other receivables 687,015 687,015 00,700 09,790
1,547,168 1,547,168 575,043 575,043
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Bank borrowings - 288,228 - 288,228 489,670 305,000
Bank overdrafl 164,022 164,922 291,675 291,675
Trade and other payables 3,043,604 3,045,604 2,532,680 2,532, 680
2,920,298 2,920,298 3.214,025 3,219,451

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure it is able to continue as a going concern while maximising returns
to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance. The Company's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the company econsists of net debt (borrowings offsel by eash and cash equivalents) and
equily of the Com pany (com prising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings).

The Com pany is nol subjecl to any exlernally im posed capital requirements.
The Company’s risk managemenl department reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual
basis. As parl of this review, the commitlee considers the cost of capital and the risks associaled with each class

of capital. The Company's gearing ralio is determined as the proportion of nel debt Lo equily. No formal
debt /feanity tareet has been established.
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4.1 Gearing ratio

The gearing ratioal the end of the reporting period is as follows: 41 December 41 December

2019 2018
Debt (note i) 459,007 081,345
Cash and cash equivalents (859.551) (65.,251)
Net debt {400,546) 616,002
Equity (note ii) 3:915,087 4:.534,916
Net debt to equity (10%) 17 %

Mote i Debt is defined as long and short term borrowings.
Nole ii: Capital ineludes all capital and reserves of the company.
Loan covenants

Under the terms of the major borrowing facilities, the Company is required to comply with the following
financial covenants:

- The Company shall not mortgage, pledge or subject to any lien or encumbrance any of the Company’s
properties and assets now owned withoul either securing the banks oulstanding on a pari-passu basis or giving
other security acceptable to the bank.

- The Company shall provide the bank with a copy of its audited statement of financial position and profit or loss
accounts within 120 days of the end of the financial vear.

- The Company shall submit a copy of its quarterly management accounts within 6o days of the end of the
quarter and audited accounts within 120 days of the end of the financial vear.

The Company com plied with these covenantsin the vear 2019 and 2018,

2 Critieal accounting estimates and judgements

The preparalion of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain eritical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounling policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgemenl or complexily, or areas where
assumplions and estimales are significant to the financial statements are disclosed herein.

Estimales and judgements are conlinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events thal are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The
company makes eslimales and assum plions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimales will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

5.1 Employee benefit obligations

The present value of the defined benefit obligation depends on a number of faclors thal are determined on an
acluarial basis using a number of assum ptions. The assum ptions used in delermining net cost for the em ploy ee
benefit obligation include the discount rate, Any change in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount
of the obligations. Other key assumplions for retirement obligalions are based in parl on currenl market
conditions. Additional informaltion is disclosed in nole 19.

5.2 Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies the IFRS g sim plified approach in measuring the expected credit losses (ECL) which usesa
lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. The expected eredil loss rale for trade receivable is
determined using a provision malrix approach.
The loss allowances for financial assels are based on assumptions about risk of default, expected loss rales and
maximum contractual period. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs lo Lhe impairment caleulation, based on the Company’s past history, existing markel conditions as well

as forward looking estimaltes al the end of each reporting period. Details of Lhe key assumplions and inpuls used
are disclosed in note 2.1.1.

Additional information on im paired receivables is included in note 14.1.
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Useful life of plant and machinery

33

Plant and machinery is depreciated over its useful life. The Company estimates the useful lives of plant anc
machinery based on the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimation of the
useful lives of plant and machinery are based on technical evaluations carried out by those staff with
knowledge of the machines and experience with similar assets. Estimates could change if expectations differ due
to physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence. It is possible however, that future results o
operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates brought about by changes in factor:
mentioned above, The amounts and timing of expenses for any period would be affected by changes in thes
factors and circumstances. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the plant and machinery would increas
expenses and decrease the value of non-current assets.

Revenue recognition

Significant financing component

The Company has contracts with customers that requires advance payment to be made before sale of goods can
oceur. The Company has considered whether the contract contains a financing component and whether thai
financing component is significant to the contract, including both of the following;

a. The difference, if any, between the amount of promised consideration and cash selling price and;

b. The combined effect of both the following:

- The expected length of time between when the Company transfers the goods to their customers and when
payment is received;

=The prevailing interest rate in the relevant market.

The advance period is less than 12 months, usually within 3o days. Asa result, the effect of discounting will nol
be material.

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promisec

goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. Consequently, the Company
does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.
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Revenue from contraet with customers

Sale of diary products
Sale of lce cream

Sale of juice

All sales are within Nigeria.

31 December
2019

31 December

2018

N'ooo

8,705,103

N'ooo

7,205,172

3,800,970 2,003,788

BG8,516 032,400

13.473.580 11,161,360
—

Liabilities related to eomtracts with ecustomers

The company has recognised the following liabilities related to contraets with customers:

Conlract liabilities - customer deposils
Contract liabilities - rebates

21 Decem ber

31 December

2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
105,478 46,820
228,040 244,272
434.418 241,002

Contract liabilities relate to advance payments from customers and also volume rebales earned by vendors and
customers bolh of which can be used as consideration for purchase of goods,

Norevenue recognised in the current reporting pericd relates Lo carried-forward contract liabilities,

Expenses by Nature

131 December

31 Decem ber

2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Raw materials and consumables used 4,972,023 , 247,025
Em ploy ee benefit expense (note 8) 1,000,545 1,724,526
Directors fees 18,0610 18,9060
Depreciation (note 12.1) 1,820,658 1,005,314
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assels 24,271 -
Amaortisation of intangible assets (note12.2) 1,580 2,935
Office expenses 471,926 445,229
Repairs and maintenance 1,420,310 1,126,635
Fent and rates 1,086,511 001,080
Audit fees 16,507 16,400
Bank charges 71,479 By, 067
Exchange losses 20,420 0,080
Advertising, sales promotion and corporate marketing 400,301 118,982
Other expenses 146,065 60,730
12,486,000 11,051,070

Cosl of sales 7.360,160 6,730,452
Distribution expenses 2,072,821 2,411,818

Administrative expenses

2,155,118

1,008,806

12,486,004

11,051,070
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8 Employee benefit expense

Wages, salaries and allowances
Pension costs - defined contribution plans
Pension costs - defined benefit plans

Medical, welfare and tlraining

9 Other income

(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
*Miscellaneous income

Refund of excess bank charges

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
Nooo N'ooo
1,635,880 1,491,922
Bo,055 76,551
38,701 126,055
145.709 120,107
1,900,345 1,724,920

41 December

31 December

2019 2018
N'000 N'ooo
(5,794) 99,859
139,104 54.880
33,015

133,310 188,354

*Miscellancous income largely relales lo income earned from the sale of serap ilems from inventory and
reimbursement received from the Industrial Training Fund for staff training expenses incurred in prior periods.

10 Finance income [/ (costs)

Finance income:
- Interesl income

- Exchange gain on loans

Finance cost:

- Bank borrowing

- Related party borrowing
=Overdraflts

- Interest on actuarial valuation
- Interest on lease liability

Total finance costs

Net finance costs

11 Income tax

Educalion lax

Income tax

*Additional income tax
Total current tax charge

41 December

31 December

2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

= 5:.837

7 ?-?ﬁ{)

- 133,000

(50,415) (161,0941)

0 (72,782)

(81,391} (143.852)

(75.856) (75,013)
(7.509)

(215,171) (453.588)

(215,171) (439,982)

21 December

31 December

2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
43,570 54,170
68,189 -
70,353 =
182,118 54,170

*Additional income lax relates Lo Lax liability arising from com pleted lax authority examinations for the years

2007 lo2ol1l.,

Deferred tax (note 18)
Originalion and reversal of tem porary differences
Total deferred tax

Income tax
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The tax {charge)/ credit relating to components of other comprehensive income s as follows:

| 31 December zo1g |
Before tax Tax credit Affer tax
NN AL TN
‘l': (RREIT j.ll 1;’:" 11 & Ih L e |'| ?I': |_'| LERES L 1:':" ) I-ll L"IJ‘IL!:.“. i\."ll
Other comprehensive income = * g
| 31 December 2018 |
Before tax Tax eredit After tax
NN NN TN DY
il': Tua rl.]l 1_:&".“ an 'Il" ¥EL enT |'|J‘I\. |_'|'i rent I:ll.'l'".' I-ll L3 "I ¥ Il_i;'.ll. 10
Other comprehensive income - - -

The curerent rax charge has been eomputed at the appheable rne of 30% (31 December 2018: 30%) plus educanon s levy af 2% (31 December

201 8: 2%) on the profit tor the year after adpusting for certain stems of expenditure and income which are not deducuble or chargeable for tax
; ] [ 1 -

I“II!J\.":\('L. .""'a.' m I.II. |.||.|':'|iIIIL' I.'.‘:!J'::Ill-l.'l- ill\'.'l'.l.l.ll.' it('ll'l\- l-III.'II s '.E\.)II'.I[:'."II}l I“I!J!i‘l" l('l.lli\.\ll.‘h 1.'.'(’:'\'.'!|:\':'§- .IlllE Cerlam Iﬁlt)\'iﬁi\.'llb I|"¢'i||.|.'|l.|r|.' ol Illt\.:l“'l.'ll s

a deduction by the tax authorties, Tax exempt meome inchude icome such as dividend income and income from government bonds which are

nert taable.

The moverment in the current ineome tax |i:|!!l|.|i!:c 15 s follows: 3 December 3 December

2019 2018

1] 000

At start of the year 57350 10,033
Tax paid (54,170 (6,853
Income taxcharge 182118 54,1700
At end of the year 185,298 57,350

Further information about income tax is presented below,
The tax on the f'.r:-||1!:|:m:."a. !:Ir\f'||i1 hefore tax differs from the theareteal amount that would arse using the basic tax rate as follows:

3 December 31 December

2009 2018

TS0 i
Profit f{loss) before tax: 896,275 (147 358)
Income tax using the domestic copomtion tas rate [@30% 268,883 (44,207)
Educateon tax 43,576 54,170
Effect of peernanent differences (24,362) (42,030)
Adjustment to tax for previous years T0.353
Exempt urmingdifferences (4,025)
Tertiary education tax on temporary difference 8,741 (16,2317
Prioe year over provision-deferred tax {839) 955
Minimium tax 68,144
Total income tax expense in profit or loss 434,406 (52,068)
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12.2

13

Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January zo19
Additions

At 31 December 2019

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January zo19
Amortisation charge

At 31 December 2019

Net book amount at 31 December 2019

Cost

At January 2018
Additions

At 31 December 2018

Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2018
Amortisation charge

At 31 December 2018

Net book amount at 31 December 2018

Computer
software

N'ooo

57,598

57,598

51,264
1,589

52,853

4,745

52,796
4,802

57,598

48,329
2,935

51,264

6,334

The amortisation charge for the year is included in other operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive

income.

Inventories

Finished goods

Raw and packing materials
Non trade stock

Goods in transit

21 December

21 December

2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
232,339 178,222
1,137,426 704,743
5,959 37.102
1,217,079 462,534
2,592,803 1,382,601
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Trade and other receivables

14

14.1

Trade receivables

Stall debtors

Insurance claims/receivables

Due from related parties (note 25)
*Other receivables

Prepay ments

*Other receivables relates toadvance payments made to suppliers.

Trade receivables - net
Impairment of trade receivables

Gross trade receivables

Impairment of financial assets

Movementsin the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

At 31 December - caleulated under 1AS 30
Increase in impairment losses on transition (adoption of IFRS o)

At January 2018 - restated

Impairment charge for the year
Beceivables written off during the vear
Recoverables during the vear

Al 31 December

Cash and eash equivalents

Cash in hand
Cash at bank

Cash and eash equivalents

64

31 December

21 December

2010 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
307,000 273.2406
45,785 30,470
13,582 14,470
145,650 ug,5148
35,0680 g2, 080
Qo,071 317,215
778,586 827,003
407,000 274,240
24,602 20,416
421,008 B3Oz, 6062

21 December

21 December

2010 2018
N'onoo N'ooo
29,4106 44,342

(4,175)

20,416 40,167
0,354 13,810
{14,168} (16,771)
- (7,796)
24,002 20,410

21 December
2019

21 December
2018

N'onoo

257,745
ol 2ol

N'ooo

17,359
47,894

859,553

65,253
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Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of the statement of cash lows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Bank overdrafis '[nnl{; =] n}

Cash and eash equivalents

Share capital
Authorised share capital

Ordinary shares(1,800,000,000 @50k each)
Preference shares (200,000,000 @50k each)

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares
1,102,035,349 ordinary sharesof 50k each

31 December

31 December

2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
#59,553 65,253
(164,022 {291,675)
604,631 (2206,922)

21 December

21 December

2010 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
QO0,000 000,000
100,000 100,000
1,000, (00 1,000,000
581,517 581,517

Al the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 173 September 2018, the shareholders approved the inerease of the
authorised share capital of Ni,2o00,000,000 divided inte 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50k each and
200,000,000 preference shares of 50k each to Nz ooo, 000,000 divided into 1,800,000,000 ordinary shares ol
5ok each and 200,000,000 preference shares of 50k each by the ereation of additional 8oo,000,000 ordinary
shares of 50k each, such new shares ranking pari passu in all respeets with the existing ordinary sharesin the share

Al the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 13 September 2018, the shareholders approved the allotment of
163,217,501 ordinary sharesat a price of N2o per share.

Movements in ordinary shares:

Asat 1 January

Asat 31 December

Asat 1 January
Shares issued in the vear

Asat 31 December

2010

Number Sharecapital Share premiom
‘000 N'ooo N'ooo
1,163,033 400,008 4,241,575
1,163,033 581,517 4,241,575

[ 2018
Number Share capital Share premium
'000 N'ooo N'ooo

900,816
163,217

400,008
B1,600

1,008 865
2,142,710

1,163,033

499,908

4,241,575
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Profit/(loss) per share

Basic profit/(loss) per share is caleulated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

2019 2018
Profit/(Loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company (N'ooo) 461,779 (95,200)
Weighted average number of ordinary sharesin issue ('ooao} 1,162,033 1,163,033
Basic and diluted loss per share (kobo) 40 (8)

There are no potentially dilutive sharesoutstanding at both vear ends. Consequently, diluted carnings per share is

the same as basie earnings per share.
Deferred tax

Deferred income taxes are caleulated on all temperary differences under the liability method using an effective tax
rate of 30% (2018: 30%). Deferred tax assets is recognised to the extent that it is recoverable from future taxahble
profits.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are attributable tothe following items:

31 December 21 December
2010 2018
Deferred tax liabilities N'ooo N'ooo
Deferred tax liability tobe recovered after more than 12 months. 154,152 41,600

Deferred tax liability to be recovered within 12 months -
154,152 41,600

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax asset to be recovered after more than 12 months, 2R2,172 221,070
Deferred tax asset Lo be recovered within 1 2 months 20,572 188,628
272,744 412,508
Net deferred assets 118,612 370,089

The movement in deferred income tax assets and lHabilities during the yvear isas follows

Deferred income tax assets tdanuary  Recognised in Recognised in 31 December
2014 Profit or loss ocCl1 2019

N'ooo N'ooo N'oDoo N'ooo

Em ploy ment benefit obligation 180,055 249,742 F 210,607
Unrealised exchange loss 188,628 (168,056) - 20,572
Property, plant and equipment 20,533 = = 20,533
Provisions 22,482 (1,540) - 20,042
412,508 {139,854) - 272,744
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Deferred income tax assets itJanuary  Recognised in Recognised in 31 December
2018 Profit or loss OcCl 2018

N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Employ ment benefit obligation 168,363 12,592 180,055
Unrealised exchange loss - 188,628 - 188,628
Property, plant and equipment 177,156 (156,623) - 20,533
Provisions 17,827 4,655 - 22,482
363,340 49,252 = 412,598

Deferred income tax liabilities tdJanuary  Recognised in Recognised in a1 December
2019 Profit or loss 0cCl 2019

N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Property, plant and equipment - 110,538 - 110,538
Lease liabilities - 1,085 - 1,085
Unrealised exchange gain 41,600 - - 41,600
41,600 112,523 = 154,132

Deferred income tax liabilities 1January  Recognisedin  Reecognised in 21 December
2018 Profit or loss 0ClI 2018

N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Property, plant and equipment - - - -
Unrealised exchange gain g8.595 (56,686) - 41,600
98,505 (56,986) 2 41,609

There are nochanges todeferred tax balances arising from the adoption of IFRS 16 at 1 January zo19

At vear end, the Company had nounrecognised deferred tax assets. The directors are of the opinion that foreseeable
profits will be enough toutilize the deferred tax assets generated.

The Company has incurred losses over the last 5 financial yvears following significant financing costs recorded on
borrowings. They relate to costs Incurred on borrowings obtained to fund the operations of the company. These
borrowings have been significantly reduced in the current period. The Company has concluded that the deferred
asscts recognised will be recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based on the approved business
plans and budgets for the Company . The Company isexpected to generate taxable income from 2019 onwards. The
losses ean be carried forward indefinitely and have noexpiry date.

Employment benefit obligations

The Company and its employees make a joint contribution of 18% (10% by the emplover and 8% by the em ployee)
of basic salary, housing and transport allowance to each emplovee's retirement savings account maintained with
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(a) Stalf gratuily plan

The Company operates an unfunded defined benefit staff gratuity plan where qualifying employees receive a lump
sum payment based on the number of vears served after an initial qualifying period of five yvearsand grosssalary
on date of retirement.

(k) Long service award

The company provides employees with two (2) Long Service Award Benelils — a flal cash award expressed as a
proportion of basic salary logether with a gift award based on years of service. The company's mandalory
retirement age is 6oy ears for all staff.

The gratuity and other long term em ploy ee benefit provisions are based upon independent actuarial valuation
conducted by Deloitte, France.

31 December a1 December

Statement of financial position liability for: 2019 3018
N'ooo N'ooo

Staff gratuity plan G00,57 4 522,611
Long service award fHhe,001 56,078
671,615 578,689

a Staff gratuity plan

The amount included in the statemenl of financial position arising from the entily's obligatlion in respect of the
graluily scheme is as follows:

31 December 21 December

2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Present value of unfunded obligations 600,574 522,011
Liability in the balance sheet 609,574 522,611

Movemenl in Lthe present value of the gratuily scheme in the current vear were as follows:

31 December 41 December

2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Opening defined benefit obligation 522,611 488,705
Currenl service cosl 74,511 q2,272
Interest cost 68,400 08,410
Benefits paid (16,047) (66,785)
Closing defined benefit obligation 600,574 528 611
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The amount recognised in comprehensive income in respect of the gratuity scheme 15 as follows:

2019 2018
N'000 N'000
Current service cost 34511 322712
Interest expense 63,499 68,419
f-:{hn'l'rfll::ll'lt.:l'lr.‘i of defined benefit costs
recogmised m I‘anﬁl‘ or loss 103,010 100,691
Remeasurement of the defined
benefit obligation
-Actuarial gamn arisimg from expenence
adjustments - -
-Actuarial loss ansing from changes in
CCONOINIC Assumptions - -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income - -
Total 103,010 100,691

The current service cost for the year s recognised in employee benefit expense i profit/loss account. The entire interest
expense for the year has been mecluded in finance costs,

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit Hability is included in other comprehensive income

The principal actuanal assumptions 3l 31

were as follows: December December
2019 2018
N'000 N'000

Average long term discount rate (p-a) 149 15%

Average long term pay increase (pa.) 164 4%

Sigmificant actuanal assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected salary
merease, The sensitivaty analyses below has been determaned based on reasonable possible {.:I'I:'il'lj_:t.:!‘- of the !:t.:s.rjcl::ri‘rt.:
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting perod, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Base See above 609 574
Discount rate +1% 562425
1% 662,840
Inflation rate +0,25% 615,678
-0.25% 613,604

The sensitwaty analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change m the defined benefit obligation as it
15 unlikely that the change in :!ﬁ-.iulnpl;m';s would occur 1 ssolaton of one another as some of the :l$‘.illﬂ'ﬁi']l1l{h['|."- may be
correlated.
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Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been caleulated using the projected unit eredit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that
applied in caleulating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the statement of financial position.

There was nochange in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior vears

The maturity profile of staff gratuity is shown below;

N'ooo
2020 15,014
202l 39,527
2022 34,477
20259 122,014
2024 126,847
2025 & above 654,531

The weighted average duration of stafl gratuity asat 31 December 20109 was g yvearsand 5 months,
b Long service award

The amounts recognised in the statement of finaneial position are recognised as follows:

21 December 31 December

2010 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Present value of unfunded ohligations 62,061 56,079
21 December 31 December

2010 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Opening long serviee award obligation 56,079 50,630
Current service eost 4,140 3,783
Interest cost 7.357 6,504
Benefits paid (5,565) (4,028)
Closing long service award obligation 62,0601 56,079
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The amount recognised in com prehensive income in respect of the long service award is as follows:

21 December 21 Dec
2014
N'ooo
Current service cost 4,190
Interesl expense 7,357
Com ponenls of defined benefil costs recognised in profit or loss 11,547
Remeasurement of the defined benefit obligation
Com ponents of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive
InCom e “
Total 11,547

The principal methods and assum ptions are the same as the staffgratuity plan.

The current service cost and remeasurement gain/losses for the year are included in the em ployee benefit
in profit/loss account. The enlire inlerest expense for the year has been included in finance costs,

The sensitivity analysis for the long service award is detailed below:

Base See above 62,001
Discount rate |4 q99% 50,197
-1 % 65,164
Inflation rale |+0.05% G2 629
=.25% 1 ,R02

The maturity profile of long service award is shown below:

N'ooo
2020 g,503
2021 6,714
2023 10,651
2023 2,469
2024 2,548
2025 & above 13,140

The weighted average duration of long service award asat 31 December 2019 was 5 vears and 6 months,
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Risk exposure on employee benefit obligations

Inflation risk

Employee benefit obligations are linked to salary inflation, and higher inflation will lead Lo higher liabilities,

Retirement age of employee

The majority of the plans' obligations are pavable on resignation / retirement of em ployees, Decreases in retirement
age will result in an increase in the emplovee benefit ohligations. This is particularly significant in the emplovee
benefit obligations, where inflationary increases result in higher sensitivity to changes in expected retirement age.

Borrowings

Non-current

Bank borrowings

Current

Bank borrowings

Bank overdraft

Total borrowings

This is further analysed
Term Loans

Zenith Bank (Note 2o.1)

Bankers import finance facilities (Nole 20.2)

Other borrowings

Bank overdraft

Total Borrowings

72

31 December

31 December

2010 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
. 61,753

204,085

164,022

327,917
201,075

459,007

619,502

459,007

681,345

21 December

21 December

2010 2018
N'ooo N'ooo

- 189,070
294,085 =
294,085 389,670
164,022 291,675
164,022 291,675
459,007 681,345
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20.1  Zenith Bank Ple

The balance al the end of the year is Nil (2018: N380.7 million) represents the outstanding balance of the drawn
down portion of N1.5 billion lcan granted to the Company by Zenith bank Ple under a loan agreement dated 23
Seplember 2015, The loan is interest bearing, aceruable on monthly basis al 18% per annum. The loan is repayable
aver 4 vears from the date of drawdown. This is secured by a negative pledge over the assets of the company. The
loan was fully paidin 2019

2zo.2  Banker Import Finance Facilities

The balance at the end of the year is Nzggm (2018: NIL). This was an import finance facility obtained from
Stanbic IBTC Bank Ple in October 2019 to finanee importalion with an interest rate of 16.5%. This was secured by a
negative pledge over the assets of the company.

21 Trade and other payables 31 December 21 December
2010 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Trade payables 671,800 767,160

Due to related parties (note 25) 1,078,407 1,413,908

Other payables FO7,208 320,540

Lease asset liability 2,469 -

*Other acceruals H288,260 480,155
F,108,233 2,090,778

* Other aceruals relate to factory expenses, electricity bills, marketing expenses and haulage fees for which the
Company is yel tobe billed.

21.1  Lease asset liability 21 December 21 December
2010 2018
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 December 2018 2 g

Add: adjustments as a result of a different treatment of extension
and lermination options 30,840 -
Lease liabilities recognised as al 1 January 2019 49,840 :
Additions - .
Interest expense for the year 7,500 -
Payments made during the period {44,8809) -
Closing balance as at 31 December 2019 2,460 -
Current lease liabilities 2,400 .
Mon-current lease liabilities - -
2:4'&“ L
2z Dividend payable 31 December 31 December
2010 2018
N'ooo N'ooo
Al January and 31 December 2.437 2,437
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23 Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations

31 December 31 December

2010 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Profit /(Loss) before income tax 806,275 (147,358)
Adjustments for:

- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12.1) 1,874,580 1,003,314

- Exchange loss on related party loan - (7764)

-Impairment of trade and other receivables (note 14.1) 9,354 13816

- Amortisation of intangible assets (note 12.2) 1,580 2095

- Current service & interest cost on post employ ment benefits (note 19) 114,557 111068

- Interest expense 50,415 234723

- Gain/{loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment (nole g) £,704 (og,850)

- Interest income (note 10) = (5.837)

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in contract liabilities

(1,210,202)
143,520

155,143
20,002

Decrease/(inecrease) in trade and other receivables 29,0910 (154,919)

Interest expense on leases 7,500

Decrease in impairment losses on transition (Adoption of IFRS 9) - 4,175

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 1,117,454 [50,517)

Cash generated from operations 3,040,575 2,331,007
23.1  Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 14,111 154,552

Less: net book value 10,005 34,003

{Loss)/ profit on disposal of property plant and equipment (5.704) 09,850
23.2 Net debt reconciliation

This seetion setsout an analysis of net debt and the movementsin net debt for each of the periods presented.

2010
Cash/ bank
overdraft Borrowings Net debt
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Asal 1 January {201,675) (380,670) (681,345)
Cash lows 126,753 2/8,101 384,854

Foreign exchange adjustments - i ;
Other changes (i) ) (50,415) (50,415)
(164,922} (181,984) (346,900}
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| 2018
Cash/ bank
overdraft Borrowings Net debt
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Asat 1 January (383,444) (3,041,064) (4.325,408)
Cash flows 01,700 514,807 Goh, 600
Foreign exchange adjustments - 7,760 7,709
Other changes (i) . (234,723) (254,723)
Settlement of loan from related party through the issue
of shares (i) zi 3,264,351 3,264,351
(201,675) (389,670) (681,345)
Other changes (i)

Other changes include interest expense which are presented as operating cash flows in the statement of cash flows,

Settlement of loan from related party through the issue of shares (ii)

Ten million United States Dollar (USD) loan granted to the Company by the Fan Milk International under a loan
agreement dated 15 December 2016 wasconverted Lo 163,217,501 unitsof ordinary shares in 2018, The resultant
increase in share capital and share premium has been disclosed in the statement of changes in equity.

24 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(n) Legal proceedings
The eompany has litigation and ¢laims which arose in the normal course of business and they are being contested
by the company. The directors, having sought professional legal counsel, are of the opinion that no significant
liahility will erystalise from these litigations and therefore no provision is deemed necessary for these legal elaims.

The Company had no contingent liability asat the time of this report.

(h) Capital commitments

Mon-cancellable operating lease rentalsare payvable as follows:

31 December 31 December

2010 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Mot later than 1 vear 67,205 170,746
Later than 1 vear but not later than 5 vears 183 65,007
Later than 5 vears o 50,731
67,478 293,474
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Related party transactions

25

(a)

(h)

Fan Milk isa subsidiary of Fan Milk International, 99.3% of the share capital of the Company is owned by Fan Milk
International and 0.7% is owned by Nigerian individuals and eorporate investors,

The following transactions were earried out with related parties

Transactions with related parties

Purchase of goods and services 21 December 21 December
Relationship 2010 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Fan Milk Internaticnal FParent Company 215,305 62,788
Emidan A/S Sister company 4,003,512 2,602,100
*Other CBlUs Sister company - 145,182
4,218,817 2,000,070

Purchases from Emidan A/S relates to the cost of raw material and spares imported from Emidan A/S in the vear.
Purchases from Fan Milk International and other CEUs relates to expenses incurred by related parties on behalf of
the Company.

Goods and services are bought from related entities on normal commereial termsand conditions,

*Other CBUs are related parties of the entity which have incurred expenses on behalfl of the Company in the vear.

These are listed under note 2 5{e).

Key management compensation

Key management includes directors (execulive and non-executive), members of the Execulive Commiltee and the
Company Secrelary. The compensation paid or payvable to key management for em ployee services is shown below:

21 December 21 December

20 19 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Salariesand other short-term emplovee benefits 30,600 17,200
Post-em ploy ment benefits (Gratuity & pension) - -
20,600 17.200
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()

(d)

Year end balanees from sales/purchases of goods and services

Receivables from related parties

Fan Milk Ghana

Fan Milk Togo

Fan Milk West Africa

Danone

Danone ELN (Early Life Nutrition)

Payables torelated parties

Fan Milk International
Emidan A/S

Central Danone

Danone

Fan Milk Ghana

Fan Milk S5.A. Togo

Fan Milk Cote d'ivoire SA
Danone Mederland

31 December 31 December

Relationship 2010 2018
N'ooo N'ooo

Sister com pany Hhz,680 14,925
Sister com pany 25,520 21,801
Sister com pany 23,403 17,754
Ultimalte parent RB,190 2,048
Sister com pany an, 808 43,650
195,556 00,478

31 December 31 Deeember

Relationship 2019 2018
N'ooo N'ooo

Parent com pany 388,400 291,205
Sister com pany 1,234,080 728,407
Sister com pany 6,192 5,200
Ultimate parent 252,007 343,088
Sister com pany 04,127 3,150
Sister com pany 18,354 2,649
Sister com pany 150 :
Sister com pany 14,480 -
1,07 8,497 1,413,908

The payables to related parties arise mainly from purchase transactions and are due two months after the date of

purchase. The pavables bear nointerest.

Loans from related parties

Loans from Fan Milk International (FMI)

At 1 January

Addition during the year
Interest expense in the year
Foreign exchange difference
Converted Lo equily

At 31 December

2019

28

N'ooo

N'ooo

3,199,337

72,782
(7.768)
(3,264,351)

Interest expense on the FMI loan is computed using the effective interest method which takes intoaccount any fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Interest expense is included in finance costs in the

statement of nrofit or loss.
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26 Staff numbers and costs

The average number of persons, excluding direetors, emploved by the company during the vear were as follows:

Senior Staff Number Number
Production 22 23
Administrative 1 50 1414

181 172

Supervisory/Junior Staff
Production 40 42
Administrative 10 207

230 249

Total 411 421

The total employee benefits expense in the vear com prise the following: 2019 2018

N'ooo N'ooo

Wages, salariesand allowances 1,655,880 1,401,922

Pension costs - defined contribution plans 80,055 76,551

Pension costs - defined benefit plans 38,701 30,0585

Medical, welfare and training 145,700 120,397

L,YOO,345 1,724,926

The table helow shows the numbers of emplovees, other than emplovees who discharged their duties wholly or
mainly outside Nigeria, who earned over Njoo,000 in the year.

Number Number

Maoo,001 - NFOO,000 21 8
Mroo,001 - NT7o0,000 56 38
N7o0,001 -Ngoo,000 53 63
Mooo,001 - N1 ,000,000 21 Al
Above Mi,oo0,000 200 o287
411 447

2019 2018

Directors emoluments N'ooo N'ooo
Fees paid to non-execulive directors 18,600 18,600
Emoluments paid to executive directors 40,600 17,200
Fees of the chairman 3,600 3,240
Emolument of the highest paid director 31,100 17,200
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The number of Directors whose emoluments fell within the following range are as follows

Number Nuimber

Na, 000,001 - N3,000,000 0 i
Ng,000,001 -N4,000,000 1 1
Above Ng,000,000 1 1
8 8

Compliance with regulatory bodies

The Company did not contravene any regulation of the Financial Reporting Couneil Act or any Act issued by any
other relevant bodies.

Events after statement of financial position date

In the first quarter of 2020, there was a COVID =19 outbreak which has spread globally. The outhreak has been
declared a Public Health Emergency of International eoncern by World Health Organization (WHO) in March
2020. As al the date of this report, several cases have been confirmed in Nigeria by the Nigerian Centre for Disease
Control,

The disease has caused a significant reduction in social interaction, with a shutdown of public facilities and phy sical
interaction. Measures taken to conlain the virus have affected economic activity. It is expected thal majority of
manufacturers will be affected significantly, most of the industrial companies are beginning to elose facilities and
are mulling the extent of layoffs to help curb the spread of the virus and for economic reasons. The manufacturing
seclor, who are the major emplover of workers in the world assumed to be mostly hit during this outbreak for
pessible closure of their operations due to inabilily to operate remately without being on site and decline in product
demand asa resull of slowdown in economie activities.

In the light of these recent developments and its underlying impaet, the Company, have assessed Lthe financial
impact on our going concern focusing on vear financial projections. The revenue is expected Lo decline by 14.3% in
quarter 2 versus 2019 bul rebound in Qg & Q4 Lo close the year with growth of 7% versus last year.

In spite of the projected revenue decline in Q2 there will not be a negative impact on the going concern of the
campany and we will still end the financial v ear in a profit region through effective management of both variable
and fixed overheads of the business.

We remain extremely vigilant and closely monitors situation ereated by the COVID-19 cutbreak all through its
leneth and tobal impact remain uneertain at thisstaee
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Turnover

Other income

Cost of goods and services
-Local
-lm ported

Value added

Distributed as fol lows:

To pay employees

- Salaries and allowances, pension and welfare

To pay government

- Company laxalion

To pay finanee houses and overseas suppliers

- Interests and bank charges

To pay providers of capital
- Dividend

Retained for maintenance of assets

and future expansion of business

- Deferred taxation

- Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment
= Profit/(Loss) for the year

Value added

2010 2018
N'o0o % N'ooo %
13,473,589 11,161,360
133,311 188,354
13,000,000 11,340,720
(6,121,843) (2,003,006)
(2.,4006,188) (3,6606,401)
4,988,870 100 4,780,313 100
1,000,345 38 1,724,926 a6
182,118 4 54,170 1
316,075 &y 1,200,400 25
22,978 0o (106,298) (2)
1,876,175 a8 1,090,249 43
461,770 ) (95,200)  (2)
4,988,870 100 4,780,313 100

Value added represents the additional wealth which the company has been able to ereate by its own and its em ploy ees’
efforts. This statemenl shows the allocation of that wealth between employees, government, providers of capilal and

that retained for the future ereation of more wealth,
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Statement of finaneial position
Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets
Intangible assels

Net current liabilities

Deferred tax liability

Creditors: Amount due after one year

Net assets

Ordinary share capital
Share premium reserve
Other reserve

General reserves
Sharecholders' funds

Statement of profit or loss
Turnover

Loss before taxalion

Taxalion

Loss after taxation

Loss per ordinary share (kobo) - Basie

Loss per ordinary share (kobo) - Diluted

2010 2018 2017 2016 2015
N'OO0 N'OO0 N'oOO N'ooo N'ooo
MH0d.427 5,484,427 5,600,379 6,157,200 5.373.,283
252,073 223,070 363,346 317.550 208,610
4,745 6,334 4,467 6,586 10,997
(937.878) (1,497,764) (4,686,721) (3,773,795) (2,880,900)
(154,132) (41,609) - (287,520)  (292,069)
{671,635) (640,442) {929,005)  (1,155,112) (883,546)
3,990,600 3,534,916 442,460 1,204,915 1,530,375
581,517 581,517 499,908 499,908 499,908
4,241,575 4,241,575 1,008,865 1,008,865 1,008,865
362,276 a62,276 362,276 362,276 362,276
(1.188.672) {1,650,452)  (1,518,583) (606,1:34) (424.674)
3,996,696 3,534,916 442,460 1,264,915 1,530,375
13,473,580 11,161,300 11,752,265 10,059,040 0,450,240
896,275 (147.358) (1,115,761) (445.493) (722,822)
{434.496) 52,068 234,607 {91,267) 205,664
461,779 (05.290) (B81,154) (536,7060) (517,158)
40 (8) (806) (o8) (94)

40 (8) (86) (98) (04)

Loss per ordinary share have been com puled respectlively for each year on Lhe profit /(loss) afler tax and divided by the
weighted average number of issued No.50 ordinary shares during each year.
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Total 182 1,163,033,349

82

% of
Shares Held

0.02%
0.08%
0.05%
0.21%
0.28%
99.37%
100.00%

% of
Shares Held

0.63%
99.37%
100%

Nos. of
SHARE RANGES SHARENOL DERS SHARES of
50 Kobo
1-4,999 94 181, 087
5,000 - 49,999 64 976,404
50,000 - 99,999 8 371, 422
100,000 - 499,999 1 2,432,166
500,000 - 999,999 4 3,215,952
1,000,000 - 4,999,999 1 1,155,650,318
TOTAL 182 1,163,033,349
TYPE ANALYSIS OF MEMBERS
Nos. of Nos. of
Shareholders Type ¢y oioholders  Shores
Nigerians 181 71,583,031
F
(with forlgn addresses 1 1,155,650,318
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55TH Annual General Meeting to be held at
12:00pm on Thursday 27th August, 2020 RESOLUTIONS AGAINST

at the Executive Lounge, Radisson Hotel , ELECT:
42/44 Isaac John Street, Tkeja GRA, Lagos. =
Me. Olivier Klein

1/We Mzt Yeo Ziobeieton

Being a member/members of Fan Milk Ple, RE-ELECT :

heteby apPOINt......ceuusverrssssscersasseens..28 My OUL Dr. Babatunde Ajibade (SAN)
proxy to act and vote for me/us and my/our Mz. Olayinka O, Akinkughbe

behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held on 27th August 2020 and at X .
any Adjournment thereof. Special Business

To authorse the Directors to fix the
Dated this............ Day of ... 2020 SRIOGE oA

To approve the change of object clause
of the memorandum of association of
the Company

Shareholders’ Signature

Please indicate “x" in the appropriate square how
you wsh your votes to be cast on the resolutions set out
above. Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy will be

(Corporation must execute under it's common seal) his discretion to vote or abstain from voting.

NOTES:
. A member isentitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, is entitled to appoint a proxy in his stead,
A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

ii. To be valid, all proxies, when completed should be deposited with the Registrars, Greenwich Registrars & Data
Solutions Ltd, 247, Murtala Muhammed Way, Alagomeji, Yaba, Lagos.

ili. Toreach them not less than 48hours before the time of holding the meeting.
IFthe shareholders is a Corporation, this Form must be under its seal or under the hand of some officers or attorney
duly authorixed in that behalF.

Before posting the above form, please tear off this part and retain it for admission to the meetnig.






) GREENWICH

REGISTRARS & DATA SOLITHIVE «

Affix
Current
Passport Photograph

E-DIVIDEND MANDATE ACTIVATION FORM

Company Name

Account No.

AL
“Abplast Produds FLE

Only Clearing Banks are acceptable T s Fe T T
Instruction Asiurpees Company Lisited;

Aharribsiors Extrigben PLC

Please complete all sections of this form to make it eligitle for processing and return to the sddress below

Caabchesw Mull Protessing
Indgpries PLC

The Registrar
GREENWICH REGISTRARS & DATA SOLUTIONS LIMITED b
274 Murtala Muhammed Way, Yaba, Lagos hrathieh ALC

I'\'We heretyy request thet henceforth, all myl\our Dividend Payment(s) due to me\s from mylour [DAMA Dreasp of Camparies PLC
haldings in all the companies ticked at the right hand column be credited directly to myhour bank detalled T B P P
bedow:

Bank Verification Mumber

Bank Mame Taneral Tabecoms FLL

Bank Account Number

Account Opening Date [ ~[ .

Shareholder Account Information
Surname/ Company Name First Name Other Names

Address E2
I | Lannard igera FLG

city State Country e
| | | | T

Previous Address (if any) ;wm::mas

Chdeipups O Palwn PLC
Dluwa Gass Comgary

CSCS Clearing House Number Tha Toucit Compamy ok Wgers
| | Trizphe Ge= & Comgery PLC

BN Property Company FLC
Uriever Nigeria PLL

Uniton Bank of Fagera PL
Urion Homes REITS
Emall Address o S L
| Uriversiey Fress PLL

Shareholder's Signature Company Seal (If appl-h:lbln]

Mobile Number 1 Mobile Number 2

Wema Furding 5P P Bond
Sertea [& 11

2™ sSignatory (Joint/Company Accounts)

Help Desk Telephone No/Contact Centre
Information for Issue resolution or
clarification: +234-(0)1-2917747,
+234-{0)1-2793160-2.

GREENWICH REGISTRARS & DATA SOLUTTONS LIMITED

Websike: gitregistrars.com. Emall: infodgtinsgistmes, oom
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SHAREHOLDERS DATA UPDATE FORM

This is to inform shareholders of FANMILK PLC in our stable to update their personal details such as:

TN LT | = TR RTRTTRTTOTTRT

el B s s i s e T e R S R T R R T R R

Primary GSM Number:........covimssmmenss Altermative GSM Number.......c.imsmiiims

e T BN o S S T T A e R i e S PR T T

Bank BNamIB s v BaCACCOUITE PUMBEE i i e

ekt of Kini. .o NOXEoF Kin Phone NUmbBer i i i

R e A TR I e [ - TTRTT

I/We hereby authorise FANMILK PLC to update my/our shareholding accounts with the above information

Individual Shareholder Joint Shareholder Signature

Corporate Shareholder Company Seal
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